
EduPortal Meeting Packet

 

Meeting Packet
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 Regular Board Meeting

February 13, 2013 
7:00 PM

Packet page 1 of 151



EduPortal Meeting Agenda

EduPortal Meeting Agenda

(Vote)VII.

(p. 14)

(Vote)VI.

(Information)V.

(p. 5)

(Information)IV.

(Information)III.

(Information)II.

(Vote)I.

 

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 Regular Board Meeting

Pioneer Middle School 1750 Bob's Hollow Lane DuPont, Washington
 

 The School Board normally convenes at 6:00 pm just prior to the start of the formal Board meeting, toSTUDY SESSION:
discuss the Board agenda and to have a brief dinner. No decision making is undertaken. These study sessions are open to the

Public; however, food is not provided for the general public.
 

2/13/2013 7:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of Agenda

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Members of the audience wishing to comment on specific items on this agenda will be allowed to comment briefly during the Comments From
the Audience portion of the agenda. Those wishing to speak will please sign the Speaker List in order to be recognized by the Board. Please limit
your comments to three (3) minutes. The Board will not entertain comments during any other part of the meeting. Remarks of a negative nature
singling out specific employees, other than the Board or Superintendent, will be heard in executive session following the business meeting. The
Board reserves the right to terminate presentations containing personal attacks on individuals.

RECOGNITION - Aimee Brown, National Board Certification

PRESENTATION - Highly Capable Program

Presenter: Jaclyn Shope 

HC Presentation 2.pdf

LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

Presenter: Don Denning 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1.23.13 Minutes.pdf

CONSENT AGENDA

The purpose of the consent agenda is to reduce time going through motion, second and voting on issues of common consent. Any Board member
can ask for any item to be removed from the consent agenda. There is no discussion of items on the consent agenda. By motion of the Board,

Packet page 2 of 151



EduPortal Meeting Agenda

EduPortal Meeting Agenda

(Information)X.

(p. 150)

(Information)

(p. 143)

(Vote)

(p. 105)
(p. 81)

(Vote)

IX.

(p. 80)
(p. 77)

(Vote)

(p. 73)

(Vote)

(p. 69)

(Vote)

(p. 66)

(Vote)

VIII.

(p. 65)
(p. 62)
(p. 60)
(p. 58)
(p. 57)
(p. 18)

remaining items are approved without discussion as part of the consent agenda. Discussion of items removed from the consent agenda occurs
immediately following action on the consent agenda. 

Approval of February 2103 Account Payable.pdf
Approval of Estimated February 2013 Payroll.pdf
Approval of Certificated Personnel Report.pdf
Approval of Classified Personnel Report.pdf
Approval of Coaching Personnel Report.pdf
Approval of SHS DECA Trip.pdf

OLD BUSINESS

1. Second Reading of Policy 5001, Hiring of Retired School Employees

Presenter: Kathi Weight

Policy 5001.pdf

2. Second Reading of Policy 5050, Contracts

Presenter: Kathi Weight

Policy 5050.pdf

3. Saltar's Point Elementary Project Budget

Presenter: Bill Fritz

SPT Elementary Project.pdf

4. Transportation Facility Project Budget

Presenter: Bill Fritz

Transportation Facility Project.pdf
Tranportation Facility Drawings

NEW BUSINESS

1. Approval of 2012-2018 Capital Facilities Plan

Presenter: Jean Marc LeRoy

2012-2018 Cap Fac Plan - Env Checklist.pdf
2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan-02 08 13 Board Packet.pdf

2. Authority to Enter into Architect Contract-District Admin. Center Construction/Modernization

Presenter: Bill Fritz

Authority to Enter into Architect Contract.pdf

3. District Staffing Plan

Presenter: Bill Fritz

Memo re school staffing 2013 spring.pdf

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Members of the audience wishing to comment on specific items on this agenda will be allowed to comment briefly during the Comments From
the Audience portion of the agenda. Those wishing to speak will please sign the Speaker List in order to be recognized by the Board. Please limit

The Board will not entertain comments during any other part of the meeting. Remarks of a negative natureyour comments to three (3) minutes. 

Packet page 3 of 151



EduPortal Meeting Agenda

EduPortal Meeting Agenda

(Vote)XV.

XIV.

(Executive Session)XIII.

(Information)XII.

(Information)XI.

singling out specific employees, other than the Board or Superintendent, will be heard in executive session following the business meeting. The
Board reserves the right to terminate presentations containing personal attacks on individuals.

BOARD COMMUNICATION

ANNOUNCEMENTS

EXECUTIVE SESSION

                                                                                                             (a)Collectiveper RCW 42.30.140 (4) to discuss Collective Bargaining   
bargaining sessions with employee organizations, including contract negotiations, grievance meetings, and discussions relating got the
interpretation or application of a labor agreement; or (b) that portion o f a meeting during which the governing body is planning or adopting the
strategy or position to be taken by the governing body during the occurs  of any collective bargaining , professional negotiations, or grievance or 
mediation proceedings’, or reviewing the proposals made in the negotiations or proceedings while in progress.    
 per RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a public employee
(g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public employee. However, subject to
RCW 42.30.140(4), discussion by a governing body of salaries, wages, and other conditions of employment to be generally applied within the
agency shall occur in a meeting open to the public, and when a governing body elects to take final action hiring, setting the salary of an individual
employee or class of employees, or discharging or disciplining an employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting open to the public

  
 
 
  

RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION

ADJOURNMENT

 Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District are digitally recorded.

Packet page 4 of 151



SHSD Highly Capable 

Program 
Packet page 5 of 151



What We've Been Up 

To... 
Packet page 6 of 151



Second Grade 

Highlights 

Math: Measurement...    

Egg Car Seat Crash Test, 

Marble Ramps 

Science: "Where'sThe 

Beach" Simulation...     

Students worked to save a 

beach-front camp from 

erosion 

Packet page 7 of 151



Third Grade  

Science 

"The Dig"....              

Archaeology Simulation 

Packet page 8 of 151



Third Grade 

Math 

Measurement....         

Working with area to find 

out how many sleeping 

bags fit in their tent. 

Students created a life-

size Yeti! 

Packet page 9 of 151



Fourth Grade  

Project 

"Acid, Acid 

Everywhere".... 

Students worked to solve 

a fictional chemical spill 

simulation and re-route 

traffic  

Packet page 10 of 151



Fifth Grade Project 

"Electricity City"...    

Students created plans 

and then built a 

recreational facility 

model. They then wired it 

for electricity! 

Packet page 11 of 151



Our Current Project 

2nd~ Party Plan 

3rd~ Gift Givers 

4th~ Backyard Getaway 

5th~ Planning a Trip 

Packet page 12 of 151



Thank You For The 

Opportunity! 
Packet page 13 of 151



 
  
  

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 Regular Board 
Meeting 1.23.13 - Meeting Minutes 

1/23/2013 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm.  
Pledge of Allegiance - led by Principal Andre Stout. 
Call to Order - all Directors and Superintendent Fritz present. 
Approval of Agenda - Director Callanan moved to approve the agenda; Director Denning 
seconded the motion and the motion passed (5/0). 

II. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE  

Steilacoom Mayor Ron Lucas presented Board Chair with a check for Cherrydale Woods Parcel 
C sale agreement. Chair Scott recognized Mayor Lucas and DuPont Councilman Larry Wilcox in 
attendance. 

III. SCHOOL BOARD APPRECIATION  

Superintendent Fritz recognized the School Board for the various duties that they perform year 
round voluntarily. Cherrydale PTA President Eliahalee Cunningham presented gift bags. 
Chloe Clark Elementary PTA Co-President Kristi Mitchell and student Madeline Mitchell 
presented “commitmints”. Anderson Island Principal Weight presented a poster signed by 
Anderson Island Elementary students. Susanne McCrum, Saltar’s Point PTA Vice President 
recognized each director with a bookmark.   
Andre Stout, Pioneer Middle School Principal presented the Board with thank you cards signed 
by staff and a large poster signed by the student body and presented by students Keegan Boyd  
Marcus Hampton. Steilacoom High Booster Club Co-presidents Nanette Winkler and Beth 
Agnew Booster presented directors with stadium seats 
Anderson Island, DuPont and Steilacoom communities recognized School Board Directors 
month by individual proclamations. Supt. Fritz presented each Director a certificate upon which 
each Director thanked the audience and commented on their desire to serve children. 
 

Packet page 14 of 151



IV. MATH INTERVENTIONS PRESENTATION  

Chloe Clark Principal Gary Yoho introduced teachers Abby Cunningham and Sandra Lee who 
presented on Math Interventions being used and analyzed in 3rd grade classes at Chloe Clark 
Elementary comparing and contrasting two different teaching/learning styles. 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Director Winkler made a motion to approve the 1.9.13 regular board meeting minutes; 
Director Wong seconded the motion and the motion passed (4/1/0). 
Director Callanan made a motion to approve the 1.11.13 special board meeting minutes; 
Director Winkler seconded the motion and the motion passed (3/2/0). 

VI. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE  

Director Denning reported on the second week of Legislative Session. Hearings and meetings 
have started. 
 

VII. REPORTS - Financial  

Executive Director Ball presented on the process, requirements and funding for grants. She also 
reported on January enrollment and General Fund Balances. 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA  

Director Winkler made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda: Director Callanan seconded 
the motion and the motion passed (5/0). 

IX. OLD BUSINESS  

1. Energy Efficiency Grant Presentation  

Jim Kirschner of TRANE presented the Jobs Now Energy Efficiency Grant requirements 
and application process of this matching grant project. The Board discussed which 
elements would be included in the application. 

2. Approval of Resolution 791-01-23-13, Energy Efficiency Grant, Round 2  

Executive Director Ball recommended approving the resolution to move forward with the 
grant application Director Winkler move to approve resolution 791-01-23-13; Director 
Denning second the motion and the passed (5/0) motion.  

X. NEW BUSINESS  

Packet page 15 of 151



1. First Reading of Policy 5001, Hiring of Retired School Employees  

ED Weight recommended minor editing due to state law. Director Winkler made a motion 
to move the policy to a second reading. Director Denning seconded the motion and the 
motion passed (5/0). 

2. First Reading of Policy 5050, Contracts  

ED Weight recommended revisions to the policy. Director Winkler made a motion to 
move the policy to a second reading; Director Callanan seconded the motion and the 
motion passed (5/0). 

3. Mid-year Special Board Meeting  

Superintendent Fritz recommended a mid-year working session special board meeting to 
review goals, etc. for March 2013. Supt. Fritz and Chair Scott will get together to explore 
facilitators and dates in late March. 

4. Revision of 2012-13 School Year Calendar  

Superintendent Fritz stated that March 13 is a high school testing date and a scheduled 
ACE day for our district. The state requires the day be a full school day. The 
recommendation is to change the school calendar to March 13 as a regular full day instead 
of an ACE day. Communication will be done via website, email, press releases, etc. 
Director Denning move to accept the recommendation to modify the 2012-13 school year 
calendar; Director Wong seconded the motion and the motion passed   (5/0). 

XI. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE  

No comments. 

XII. BOARD COMMUNICATION  

Several Directors received communications that were forwarded on to Mr. Fritz for action. 

XIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

Supt. Fritz stated that tomorrow Principals Jan McCrimmon, Brian Hanson, teacher Bob Mize, Chair 
Scott and Supt. Fritz will represent the high school at a School of Distinction reception and awards 
ceremony at the Puget Sound ESD.  Directors noted the strong performance of SHS alumni now attending 
colleges. 
Supt. Fritz attended the high school drama performance and several Martin Luther King Assemblies. 
Director Callanan thanked students for their attendance. 
Chair Scott and Director Denning noted swimming and wrestling recognizing senior athletes were held 
this week.  
 

Packet page 16 of 151



 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT  

Director Denning made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:34 pm; Director Callanan seconded 
the motion and the motion passed (5/0). 

 

 

 
________________________________ 

  (Chair) 
 
  ________________________________  
      
  ________________________________ 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
(Secretary/Superintendent)  
  ________________________________ 
 
 

 

 

Packet page 17 of 151



Packet page 18 of 151



Packet page 19 of 151



Packet page 20 of 151



Packet page 21 of 151



Packet page 22 of 151



Packet page 23 of 151



Packet page 24 of 151



Packet page 25 of 151



Packet page 26 of 151



Packet page 27 of 151



Packet page 28 of 151



Packet page 29 of 151



Packet page 30 of 151



Packet page 31 of 151



Packet page 32 of 151



Packet page 33 of 151



Packet page 34 of 151



Packet page 35 of 151



Packet page 36 of 151



Packet page 37 of 151



Packet page 38 of 151



Packet page 39 of 151



Packet page 40 of 151



Packet page 41 of 151



Packet page 42 of 151



Packet page 43 of 151



Packet page 44 of 151



Packet page 45 of 151



Packet page 46 of 151



Packet page 47 of 151



Packet page 48 of 151



Packet page 49 of 151



Packet page 50 of 151



Packet page 51 of 151



Packet page 52 of 151



Packet page 53 of 151



Packet page 54 of 151



Packet page 55 of 151



Packet page 56 of 151



Packet page 57 of 151



Packet page 58 of 151



Packet page 59 of 151



Packet page 60 of 151



Packet page 61 of 151



Packet page 62 of 151



Packet page 63 of 151



Packet page 64 of 151



Packet page 65 of 151



Packet page 66 of 151



Packet page 67 of 151



Packet page 68 of 151



Packet page 69 of 151



Packet page 70 of 151



Packet page 71 of 151



Packet page 72 of 151



Packet page 73 of 151



Packet page 74 of 151



Packet page 75 of 151



Packet page 76 of 151



Packet page 77 of 151



Packet page 78 of 151



Packet page 79 of 151



January 3, 2013

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1
Conceptual Design

Dupont Transportation Hub
Packet page 80 of 151



Packet page 81 of 151



ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 
CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 

January 9, 2013 
 
 

 
 
A. BACKGROUND 
 
 1. Name of proposed project, if applicable: 
 

The adoption of the Steilacoom Historical School District's 2012-2018 Capital 
Facilities Plan ("Capital Facilities Plan") for the purposes of planning for the 
District's facilities needs.  The Town of Steilacoom, the City of DuPont, and 
Pierce County, will incorporate the District's Capital Facilities Plan into their 
Comprehensive Plans.  A copy of the District's Capital Facilities Plan is available 
for review at the District's Administrative office.   

 
 
 2. Name of applicant: 
 

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1.   
 
 
 3. Address and phone number of applicant and contact person: 
 
 Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 
 510 Chambers Street 
 Steilacoom, WA 98388 
   

 
Contact Person: Ms. LeeRae Ball, Executive Director for Finances and 
Operations 
 
Telephone:  (253) 983.2200 

 
 
 4. Date checklist prepared:  December 7th, 2012 
 
 

5. Agency requesting checklist: Steilacoom Historical School District No 1.  
 

Packet page 82 of 151



 

  2 

 
 6. Proposed timing or schedule (including phasing, if applicable): 
 

The Capital Facilities Plan is scheduled to be adopted by the District on January 
6, 2013. After adoption, the District will forward the Capital Facilities Plan to the 
Town of Steilacoom, the City of DuPont, and Pierce County, for inclusion in the 
Comprehensive Plans for these jurisdictions.  The District will continue to update 
the Capital Facilities Plan annually.  The projects included in the Capital Facilities 
Plan have been or will be subject to project-level environmental review when 
appropriate. 

 
 
 7. Do you have any plans for future additions, expansion, or further 

activity related to or connected with this proposal? If yes, explain. 
 

The Capital Facilities Plan sets forth the capital improvement projects that the 
District plans to implement over the next six years.  The Board of Directors and 
the District are exploring options for a new elementary school in DuPont, as well 
as transportation and maintenance facilities. 
 
 

 8. List any environmental information you know about that has been 
prepared, or will be prepared, directly related to this proposal. 
 
The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have undergone or will 
undergo additional environmental review, when appropriate, as they are 
developed.   
 
 

 9. Do you know whether applications are pending for governmental 
approvals of other proposals directly affecting the property covered by 
your proposal?  If yes, explain. 

 
None known. 
 
 

 10. List any government approvals or permits that will be needed for 
your proposal, if known. 
 
The District anticipates that the Town of Steilacoom, the City of DuPont, and 
Pierce County, will incorporate the District's Capital Facilities Plan into their 
Comprehensive Plans. 

 
 

Packet page 83 of 151



 

  3 

 11. Give a brief, complete description of your proposal, including the 
proposed uses and the size of the project and site. There are several 
questions later in this checklist that ask you to describe certain aspects of 
your proposal.  You do not need to repeat those answers on this page.  
(Lead agencies may modify this form to include additional specific 
information on project description.) 

 
This is a nonproject action.  This proposal involves the adoption of the 
Steilacoom Historical School District's Capital Facilities Plan 2012-2018 for the 
purpose of planning the District's facilities needs.  The District's Capital Facilities 
Plan will be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plans of the Town of 
Steilacoom, the City of DuPont, and Pierce County.  The projects included in the 
Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be subject to project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.  A copy of the Capital Facilities Plan may be viewed at 
the District's Administrative office.   

 
 
 12. Location of the proposal.  Give sufficient information for a person to 

understand the precise location of your proposed project, including a 
street address if any, and section, township, and range, if known.  If a 
proposal would occur over a range of area, provide the range or 
boundaries of the site(s). Provide a legal description, site plan, vicinity 
map, and topographic map, if reasonably available.  While you should 
submit any plans required by the agency, you are not required to duplicate 
maps or detailed plans submitted with any permit applications related to 
this checklist. 

 
   A map of the District is included with the Capital Facilities Plan. 

 
 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 
 
 1. Earth 
 

a. General description of the site (circle one): Flat, rolling, hilly, steep 
slopes, mountainous, other. 
 
The Steilacoom Historical School District is comprised of a variety of 
topographic land forms and gradients.  Specific topographic characteristics of 
the sites at which the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan are 
located have been or will be identified during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.   

 
 

Packet page 84 of 151



 

  4 

b. What is the steepest slope on the site (approximate percent slope)? 
 
Specific slope characteristics at the sites of the projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan have been or will be identified during project-level 
environmental review. 
 
 
c. What general types of soils are found on the site (for example, clay, 
sand, gravel, peat, muck)?  If you know the classification of agricultural 
soils, specify them and note any prime farmland. 
 
Specific soil types found at the sites of the projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan have been or will be identified during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
d. Are there surface indications or history of unstable soils in the 
immediate vicinity?  If so, describe. 
 
Unstable soils may exist within the Steilacoom Historical School District.  
Specific soil limitations on individual project sites have been or will be 
identified at the time of project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
e. Describe the purpose, type, and approximate quantities of any filling 
or grading proposed.  Indicate source of fill. 
 
Individual projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be 
subject, when appropriate, to project-level environmental review and local 
approval at the time of proposal.  Proposed grading projects, as well as the 
purpose, type, quantity, and source of any fill materials to be used have been 
or will be identified at that time.   
 
 
f. Could erosion occur as a result of clearing, construction, or use?  If 
so, generally describe. 
 
It is possible that erosion could occur as a result of the construction projects 
currently proposed in the Capital Facilities Plan.  The erosion impacts of the 
individual projects have been or will be evaluated on a site-specific basis at 
the time of project-level environmental review when appropriate.  Individual 
projects have been or will be subject to local approval processes.   
 
 

Packet page 85 of 151



 

  5 

g. About what percent of the site will be covered with impervious 
surfaces after project construction (for example, asphalt or buildings?) 
 
The construction projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have required 
or will require the construction of impervious surfaces.  The extent of any 
impervious cover constructed will vary with each project included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan.  This issue has been or will be addressed during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
h. Proposed measures to reduce or control erosion, or other impacts to 
the earth, if any: 
 
The erosion potential of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan and 
appropriate control measures have been or will be addressed during project-
level environmental review when appropriate.  Relevant erosion reduction and 
control requirements have been or will be met. 

 
 
 2. Air 
 

a. What types of emissions to the air would result from the proposal 
(i.e., dust, automobile, odors, and industrial wood smoke) during 
construction and when the project is completed?  If any, generally 
describe and give approximate quantities if known. 
 
Various emissions, many construction-related, may result from the individual 
projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan.  The air-quality impacts of each 
project have been or will be evaluated during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.  Please see the Supplemental Sheet for Nonproject 
Actions. 
 
 
b. Are there any off-site sources of emissions or odor that may affect 
your proposal?  If so, generally describe. 
 
Any off-site sources of emissions or odor that may affect the individual projects 
included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be addressed during 
project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
c. Proposed measures to reduce or control emissions or other impacts 
to air, if any: 
 
The individual projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will 
be subject to project-level environmental review and relevant local approval 

Packet page 86 of 151



 

  6 

processes when appropriate.  The District has been or will be required to 
comply with all applicable air regulations and air permit requirements.  
Proposed measures specific to the individual projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan have been or will be addressed during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.  Please see the Supplemental Sheet 
for Nonproject Actions.   

 
 
 3. Water 
 

a. Surface: 
 

1) Is there any surface water body on or in the immediate vicinity 
of the site (including year-round and seasonal streams, saltwater, 
lakes, ponds, wetlands)?  If yes, describe type and provide names.  If 
appropriate, state what stream or river it flows into. 
 
There is a network of surface water bodies within the Steilacoom Historical 
School District.  The surface water bodies that are in the immediate 
vicinity of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or 
will be identified during project-level environmental review when 
appropriate.  When necessary, the surface water regimes and flow 
patterns have been or will be researched and incorporated into the 
designs of the individual projects.   

 
 

2) Will the project require any work over, in, or adjacent to (within 
200 feet) the described waters?  If yes, please describe and attach 
available plans. 
 
The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may require work near 
the surface waters located within the Steilacoom Historical School District.  
Applicable local approval requirements have been or will be satisfied.  
 
 
3) Estimate the amount of fill and dredge material that would be 
placed in or removed from surface water or wetlands and indicate 
the area of the site that would be affected.  Indicate the source of fill 
material. 
 
Information with respect to the placement or removal of fill and dredge 
material as a component of the projects included in the Capital Facilities 
Plan has been or will be provided during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.  Applicable local regulations have been or will 
be satisfied.   

 

Packet page 87 of 151



 

  7 

 
4) Will the proposal require surface water withdrawals or 
diversions?  Give general description, purpose, and approximate 
quantities if known. 
 
Any surface water withdrawals or diversions required in connection with 
the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be 
addressed during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
5) Does the proposal lie within a 100-year floodplain?  If so, note 
location on the site plan. 
 
Each project included in the Capital Facilities Plan, if located in a 
floodplain area, has been or will be required to meet applicable local 
regulations for flood areas.   
 
 
6) Does the proposal involve any discharges of waste materials 
to surface waters?  If so, describe the type of waste and anticipated 
volume of discharge. 
 
Specific information regarding the discharge of waste materials that may 
be required as a result of the projects included in the Capital Facilities 
Plan has been or will be provided during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.  Please see the Supplemental Sheet for 
Nonproject Actions.   

 
 
b. Ground: 

 
1) Will groundwater be withdrawn, or will water be discharged to 
groundwater?  Give general description, purpose, and approximate 
quantities if known. 
 
Individual projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may impact 
groundwater resources.  The impact of the individual projects included in 
the Capital Facilities Plan on groundwater resources has been or will be 
addressed during project-level environmental review when appropriate.  
Each project has been or will be subject to applicable local regulations.  
Please see the Supplemental Sheet for Nonproject Actions.   
 
 
2) Describe waste material that will be discharged into the 
ground from septic tanks or other sources, if any (for example: 
Domestic sewage; industrial, containing the following chemicals . . .; 

Packet page 88 of 151



 

  8 

agricultural; etc.).  Describe the general size of the system, the 
number of such systems, the number of houses to be served (if 
applicable), or the number of animals or humans the system(s) are 
expected to serve. 
 
The discharges of waste material that may take place in connection with 
the projects included in the Plan have been or will be addressed during 
project-level environmental review.   

 
 

c. Water Runoff (including storm water): 
 

1) Describe the source of runoff (including storm water) and 
method of collection and disposal, if any (include quantities, if 
known).  Where will this water flow? Will this water flow into other 
waters?  If so, describe. 
 
Individual projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may have 
stormwater runoff consequences.  Specific information regarding the 
stormwater impacts of each project has been or will be provided during 
project-level environmental review when appropriate.  Each project has 
been or will be subject to applicable local stormwater regulations. 
 
 
2) Could waste materials enter ground or surface waters?  If so, 
generally describe. 
 
The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may result in the 
discharge of waste materials into ground or surface waters.  The specific 
impacts of each project on ground and surface waters have been or will be 
identified during project-level environmental review when appropriate.  
Each project has been or will be subject to all applicable regulations 
regarding the discharge of waste materials into ground and surface 
waters.  Please see the Supplemental Sheet for Nonproject Actions.   
 
 

d. Proposed measures to reduce or control surface, ground, and runoff 
water impacts, if any: 
 
Specific measures to reduce or control runoff impacts associated with the 
projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be addressed 
during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   

 
 

Packet page 89 of 151



 

  9 

 4. Plants: 
 

a. Check or circle types of vegetation found on the site: 
 

  ___ deciduous tree:  alder, maple, aspen, other 
  ___ evergreen tree:  fir, cedar, pine, other 
  ___ shrubs 
  ___ grass 
  ___ pasture 
  ___ crop or grain 
  ___ wet soil plants:  cattail, buttercup, bullrush, skunk cabbage, other 
  ___ water plants:  water lily, eelgrass, milfoil, other 
  ___ other types of vegetation 
 

A variety of vegetative zones are located within the Steilacoom Historical 
School District.  Inventories of the vegetation located on the sites of the 
projects proposed in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be developed 
during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
b. What kind and amount of vegetation will be removed or altered? 
 
Some of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may require the 
removal or alteration of vegetation.  The specific impacts on vegetation of the 
projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be identified 
during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
c. List threatened or endangered species known to be on or near the 
site. 
 
The specific impacts to these species from the individual projects included in 
the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be determined during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
d. Proposed landscaping, use of native plans, or other measures to 
preserve or enhance vegetation on the site, if any: 
 
Measures to preserve or enhance vegetation at the sites of the projects 
included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be identified during 
project-level environmental review when appropriate.  Each project is or will be 
subject to applicable local landscaping requirements.   

 
 

Packet page 90 of 151



 

  10 

 5. Animals: 
 

a. Circle any birds and animals which have been observed on or near 
the site or are known to be on or near the site: 
 
birds:  hawk, heron, eagle, songbirds, other:        
mammals:  deer, bear, elk, beaver, other:         
fish:  bass, salmon, trout, herring, shellfish, other:        
 
An inventory of species that have been observed on or near the sites of the 
projects proposed in the Capital Facilities Plan has been or will be developed 
during project-level environmental review when appropriate.  
 
 
b. List any threatened or endangered species known to be on or near 
the site. 
 
Inventories of threatened or endangered species known to be on or near the 
sites of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be 
developed during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
c. Is the site part of a migration route?  If so, explain. 
 
The impacts of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan on migration 
routes have been or will be addressed during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.   
 
 
d. Proposed measures to preserve or enhance wildlife, if any: 
 
Appropriate measures to preserve or enhance wildlife have been or will be 
determined during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   

 
 
 6. Energy and Natural Resources: 
 

a. What kinds of energy (electric, natural gas, oil, wood stove, solar) 
will be used to meet the completed project's energy needs?  Describe 
whether it will be used for heating, manufacturing, etc. 
 
The State Board of Education requires the completion of a life-cycle cost 
analysis of all heating, lighting, and insulation systems before it will permit 
specific school projects to proceed.  The energy needs of the projects included 
in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be determined at the time of 

Packet page 91 of 151



 

  11 

specific engineering and site design planning when appropriate.  Please see 
the Supplemental Sheet for Nonproject Actions.   
 
 
b. Would your project affect the potential use of solar energy by 
adjacent properties?  If so, generally describe: 
 
The impacts of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan on the solar 
potential of adjacent projects have been or will be addressed during project-
level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
c. What kinds of energy conservation features are included in the plans 
of this proposal?  List other proposed measures to reduce or control 
energy impacts, if any: 
 
Energy conservation measures proposed in connection with the projects 
included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be considered during 
project-level environmental review when appropriate.   

 
 
 7. Environmental Health: 

 
a. Are there any environmental health hazards, including exposure to 
toxic chemicals, risk of fire and explosion, spill, or hazardous waste that 
could occur as a result of this proposal?  If so, describe. 

 
Please see the Supplemental Sheet for Nonproject Actions. 

 
1) Describe special emergency services that might be required. 
 
Please see the Supplemental Sheet for Nonproject Actions. 
 
 
2) Proposed measures to reduce or control environmental health 
hazards, if any: 
 
The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan comply or will comply 
with all current codes, standards, rules, and regulations.  Individual 
projects have been or will be subject to project-level environmental review 
and local approval at the time they are developed, when appropriate.   

 
 

Packet page 92 of 151



 

  12 

b. Noise: 
 

1) What types of noise exist in the area which may affect your 
project (for example:  traffic, equipment, operation, other)? 
 
A variety of noises from traffic, construction, residential, commercial, and 
industrial areas exists within the Steilacoom Historical School District.  The 
specific noise sources that may affect the projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan have been or will be identified during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   

 
2) What types and levels of noise would be created by or 
associated with the project on a short-term or a long-term basis (for 
example:  traffic, construction, operation, other)?  Indicate what 
hours noise would come from the site. 
 
The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may create normal 
construction noises that will exist on short-term basis only.  The 
construction projects could increase traffic around the construction sites 
on a short-term basis.  Please see the Supplemental Sheet for Nonproject 
Actions. 

 
 

3) Proposed measures to reduce or control noise impacts, if any: 
 
The projected noise impacts of the projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan have been or will be evaluated and mitigated during project-
level environmental review when appropriate.  Each project is or will be 
subject to applicable local regulations.   

 
  
 8. Land and Shoreline Use: 
 

a. What is the current use of the site and adjacent properties? 
 
There are a variety of land uses within the Steilacoom School District, 
including residential, commercial, industrial, institutional, utility, open space, 
recreational, etc. 
 
 
b. Has the site been used for agriculture?  If so, describe. 
 
The known sites for the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have not 
been used recently for agriculture. 
 
 

Packet page 93 of 151



 

  13 

c. Describe any structures on the site. 
 
The structures located on the sites for the projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan have been or will be identified and described during project-
level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
d. Will any structures be demolished?  If so, what? 
 
The structures that will be demolished as a result of the projects included in 
the Capital Facilities Plan, if any, have been or will be identified during project-
level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
e. What is the current zoning classification of the site? 
 
The sites that are covered under the Capital Facilities Plan have a variety of 
zoning classifications under the applicable zoning codes.  Site-specific zoning 
information has been or will be identified during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.   
 
 
f. What is the current comprehensive plan designation of the site? 
 
Inventories of the comprehensive plan designations for the sites of the projects 
included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be completed during 
project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
g. If applicable, what is the current shoreline master program 
designation of the site? 
 
Shoreline master program designations of the sites of the projects included in 
the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be identified during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
h. Has any part of the site been classified as an "environmentally 
sensitive" area?  If so, specify. 
 
Any environmentally sensitive areas located on the sites of the projects 
included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be identified during 
project-level environmental review.   
 
 

Packet page 94 of 151



 

  14 

i. Approximately how many people would reside or work in the 
completed project? 
 
The Steilacoom Historical School District currently serves approximately 
3,000students.  Enrollment is expected to continue to increase. The District 
employs approximately 300 people.   
 
 
j. Approximately how many people would the completed project 
displace? 
 
Any displacement of people caused by the projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan has been or will be evaluated during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.  However, it is not anticipated that the Capital 
Facilities Plan, or any of the projects contained therein, will displace any 
people.   
 
 
k. Proposed measures to avoid or reduce displacement impacts, if any: 
 
Individual projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be 
subject to project-level environmental review and local approval when 
appropriate.  Proposed mitigating measures have been or will be developed at 
that time, when necessary.   
 
 
l. Proposed measures to ensure the proposal is compatible with 
existing and projected land uses and plans, if any: 
 
The compatibility of the specific projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan 
with existing uses and plans has been or will be assessed as part of the 
comprehensive planning process and during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.   

 
 
 9. Housing: 
 

a. Approximately how many units would be provided, if any?  Indicate 
whether high, middle, or low-income housing. 
 
No housing units would be provided in connection with the completion of the 
projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan.   
 
 
 

Packet page 95 of 151



 

  15 

b. Approximately how many units, if any, would be eliminated?  
Indicate whether high, middle, or low-income housing. 
 
It is not anticipated that the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan will 
eliminate any housing units.  The impacts of the projects included in the 
Capital Facilities Plan on existing housing have been or will be evaluated 
during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
c. Proposed measures to reduce or control housing impacts, if any: 
 
Measures to reduce or control any housing impacts caused by the projects 
included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be addressed during 
project-level environmental review when appropriate.   

 
 
 10. Aesthetics: 
 

a. What is the tallest height of any proposed structure(s), not including 
antennas; what is the principal exterior building material(s) proposed? 
 
The aesthetic impacts of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan 
have been or will be addressed during project-level environmental review 
when appropriate.   
 
 
b. What views in the immediate vicinity would be altered or obstructed? 
 
The aesthetic impacts of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan 
have been or will be addressed during project-level environmental review 
when appropriate.   
 
 
c. Proposed measures to reduce or control aesthetic impacts, if any: 
 
Appropriate measures to reduce or control the aesthetic impacts of the 
projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be determined 
on a project-level basis when appropriate.   

 
 
 
 

Packet page 96 of 151



 

  16 

 11. Light and Glare: 
 

a. What type of light or glare will the proposal produce?  What time of 
day would it mainly occur? 
 
The light or glare impacts of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan 
have been or will be addressed during project-level environmental review, 
when appropriate.   
 
 
b. Could light or glare from the finished project be a safety hazard or 
interfere with views? 
 
The light or glare impacts of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan 
have been or will be addressed during project-level environmental review 
when appropriate.   
 
 
c. What existing off-site sources of light or glare may affect your 
proposal? 
 
Off-site sources of light or glare that may affect the projects included in the 
Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be evaluated during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   

 
 

d. Proposed measures to reduce or control light and glare impacts, if 
any: 
 
Proposed measures to mitigate light and glare impacts have been or will be 
addressed during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   

 
 
 12. Recreation: 
 

a. What designated and informal recreational opportunities are in the 
immediate vicinity? 
 
There are a variety of formal and informal recreational facilities within the 
Steilacoom Historical School District.   

 
 b. Would the proposed project displace any existing recreational uses?  

If so, describe. 
 
The recreational impacts of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan 
have been or will be addressed during project-level environmental review 

Packet page 97 of 151



 

  17 

when appropriate.  The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan, 
including proposed new school facilities, may enhance recreational 
opportunities and uses. 
 
 

 c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts on recreation, 
including recreation opportunities to be provided by the project or 
applicant, if any: 

 
Adverse recreational effects of the projects included in the Capital Facilities 
Plan have been or will be subject to mitigation during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.  School facilities usually provide 
recreational facilities to the community in the form of play fields and 
gymnasiums.   

 
 
 13. Historic and Cultural Preservation: 
 

a. Are there any places or objects listed on, or proposed for, national, 
state, or local preservation registers known to be on or next to the site?  
If so, generally describe. 
 
There are no known places or objects listed on, or proposed for, such registers 
for the project sites included in the Capital Facilities Plan.  The existence of 
historic and cultural resources on or next to the sites has been or will be 
addressed in detail during project-level environmental review when 
appropriate.   
 
 
b. Generally describe any landmarks or evidence of historic, 
archaeological, scientific, or cultural importance known to be on or next 
to the site. 
 
An inventory of historical sites at or near the sites of the projects included in 
the Capital Facilities Plan has been or will be developed during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   

 
c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts, if any: 

 
Appropriate measures will be proposed on a project-level basis when 
appropriate.   

 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 98 of 151



 

  18 

14. Transportation: 
 

a. Identify public streets and highways serving the site, and describe 
proposed access to the existing street system. Show on site plans, if 
any. 
 
The impacts on public streets and highways of the individual projects included 
in the Capital Facilities Plan have been or will be addressed during project-
level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
b. Is site currently served by public transit?  If not, what is the 
approximate distance to the nearest transit stop? 
 
The relationship between the specific projects included in the Capital Facilities 
Plan and public transit has been or will be addressed during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
c. How many parking spaces would the completed project have?  How 
many would the project eliminate? 
 
Inventories of parking spaces located at the sites of the projects included in 
the Capital Facilities Plan and the impacts of specific projects on parking 
availability have been or will be conducted during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.   
 
 
d. Will the proposal require any new roads or streets, or improvements 
to existing roads or streets, not including driveways?  If so, generally 
describe (indicate whether public or private). 
 
The need for new streets or roads, or improvements to existing streets and 
roads has been or will be addressed during project-level environmental review 
when appropriate.   

 
e. Will the project use (or occur in the immediate vicinity of) water, rail,  

or air transportation?  If so, generally describe. 
 
Use of water, rail, or air transportation has been or will be addressed during 
project-level environmental review when appropriate.   
 
 
f. How many vehicular trips per day would be generated by the 
completed project?  If known, indicate when peak volumes would occur. 
 

Packet page 99 of 151



 

  19 

The traffic impacts of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan have 
been or will be addressed during project-level environmental review when 
appropriate.   
 
 
g. Proposed measures to reduce or control transportation impacts, if 
any: 
 
The mitigation of traffic impacts associated with the projects included in the 
Capital Facilities Plan has been or will be addressed during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.   

 
15. Public Services: 
 

a. Would the project result in an increased need for public services (for 
example:  fire protection, police protection, health care, schools, other)?  
If so, generally describe. 
 
The District does not anticipate that the projects identified in the Capital 
Facilities Plan will significantly increase the need for public services.   
 
 
b. Proposed measures to reduce or control direct impacts on public 
services, if any. 
 
New school facilities have been or will be built with automatic security 
systems, fire alarms, smoke alarms, heat sensors, and sprinkler systems.  
 
 

16. Utilities: 
 

a. Circle utilities currently available at the site: electricity, natural gas, 
water, refuse service, telephone, sanitary sewer, septic system, other. 
 
Electricity, natural gas, water, refuse service, telephone, and sanitary sewer 
utilities are available at the known sites of the projects included in the Capital 
Facilities Plan.  The types of utilities available at specific project sites have 
been or will be addressed in more detail during project-level environmental 
review when appropriate.   
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 100 of 151



 

  20 

b. Describe the utilities that are proposed for the project, the utility 
providing the service, and the general construction activities on the site 
or in the immediate vicinity which might be needed. 
 
Utility revisions and construction needs have been or will be identified during 
project-level environmental review when appropriate.   

 
 
C. SIGNATURE 
 
 The above answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.  
I understand that the lead agency is relying on them to make its decision. 
 
Signature:  ____________________________ 
 
Date Submitted:        

Packet page 101 of 151



 

  21 

 
D. SUPPLEMENTAL SHEET FOR NONPROJECT ACTIONS 
 
 1. How would the proposal be likely to increase the discharge to water; 

emissions to air; production, storage, or release of toxic or hazardous 
substances; or production of noise? 

 
To the extent the Capital Facilities Plan makes it more likely that school 
facilities will be constructed, some of these environmental impacts may be 
more likely.  Additional impermeable surfaces, such as roofs, access roads, 
and sidewalks could increase stormwater runoff, which could enter surface or 
ground waters.  Heating systems, emergency generators, and other school 
equipment that is installed pursuant to the Capital Facilities Plan could result in 
air emissions.  The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan should not 
require the production, storage, or release of toxic or hazardous substances, 
with the possible exception of the storage of diesel fuel or gasoline for 
emergency generating equipment.  The District does not anticipate a 
significant increase in the production of noise from its facilities, although the 
projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan will increase the District's 
student capacities.   

 
 Proposed measures to avoid or reduce such increases are: 
 

Proposed measures to mitigate any such increases described above have 
been or will be addressed during project-level environmental review when 
appropriate.  Stormwater detention and runoff will meet applicable County 
and/or City requirements and may be subject to National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System ("NPDES") permitting requirements.  Discharges to air will 
meet applicable air pollution control requirements.  Fuel oil will be stored in 
accordance with local and state requirements.   

 
 2. How would the proposal be likely to affect plants, animals, fish, or 

marine life? 
 

The Capital Facilities Plan itself will have no impact on these elements of the 
environment.  The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may require 
clearing plants off of the project sites and a loss to animal habitat.  These 
impacts have been or will be addressed in more detail during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.  The projects included in the Plan are 
not likely to generate significant impacts on fish or marine life.   

Packet page 102 of 151



 

  22 

 
Proposed measures to protect or conserve plants, animals, fish, or marine 
life are: 

 
Specific measures to protect and conserve plants, animals, and fish cannot be 
identified at this time.  Specific mitigation proposals will be identified, however, 
during project-level environmental review when appropriate.   

 
 3. How would the proposal be likely to deplete energy or natural 

resources? 
 

The construction of the projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan will 
require the consumption of energy.   

 
Proposed measures to protect or conserve energy and natural resources 
are: 

 
The projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan will be constructed in 
accordance with applicable energy efficiency standards.   

 
 4. How would the proposal be likely to use or affect environmentally 

sensitive areas or areas designated (or eligible or under study) for 
governmental protection; such as parks, wilderness, wild and scenic rivers, 
threatened or endangered species habitat, historic or cultural sites, 
wetlands, floodplains, or prime farmlands? 

 
The Capital Facilities Plan and individual projects contained therein should 
have no impact on these resources.   

 
Proposed measures to protect such resources or to avoid or reduce 
impacts are: 

 
Appropriate measures have been or will be proposed during project-level 
environmental review when appropriate.  Updates of this Plan will be 
coordinated with Town of Steilacoom, the City of DuPont, and Pierce County,   
as part of the Growth Management Act process, one of the purposes of which 
is to protect environmentally sensitive areas.  To the extent the District's 
facilities planning process is part of the overall growth management planning 
process, these resources are more likely to be protected.   

Packet page 103 of 151



 

  23 

 
 5. How would the proposal be likely to affect land and shoreline use, 

including whether it would allow or encourage land or shoreline uses 
incompatible with existing plans? 

 
The Capital Facilities Plan will not have any impact on land or shoreline use 
that is incompatible with existing comprehensive plans, land use codes, or 
shoreline management plans.  The District does not anticipate that the Capital 
Facilities Plan or the projects contained therein will directly affect land and 
shoreline uses in the area served by the District.   

 
 Proposed measures to avoid or reduce shoreline and land use impacts are: 
 

No measures to avoid or reduce land use impacts resulting from the Capital 
Facilities Plan or the projects contained therein are proposed at this time.   

 
 6. How would the proposal be likely to increase demands on 

transportation or public services and utilities? 
 

The construction projects included in the Capital Facilities Plan may create 
temporary increases in the District's need for public services and utilities.  The 
new school facilities will increase the District's demands on transportation and 
utilities.  These increases are not expected to be significant. 

 
 Proposed measures to reduce or respond to such demand(s) are: 
 

No measures to reduce or respond to such demands are proposed at this 
time.   

 
 
 7. Identify, if possible, whether the proposal may conflict with local, 

state, or federal laws or requirements for the protection of the environment. 
 

The Capital Facilities Plan will not conflict with any laws or requirements for 
the protection of the environment.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K:\18279\00005\GTY\GTY_O2142 
 

Packet page 104 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 1 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

 Steilacoom Historical School 
            District No. 1 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 
 

2012  -  2018 
 
 

 
January 2013 

Packet page 105 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 2 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

Steilacoom Historical School  
District No. 1 

510 Chambers Street 
Steilacoom, WA  98388 

(253) 988-2200 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Directors 
 

Mr. Mike Winkler 
 

Mr. Samuel Scott 
 

Mr. Donald Denning 
 

Mr. Kevin Callanan 
 

Ms. Yoshie Wong 
 

 
 

Mr. Bill Fritz, Superintendent 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by the 
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 

Packet page 106 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 3 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
            TAB 
 
Introduction              1 
 Introduction 
 Student Achievement Goals 
 District Statements and Core Values 

District Strategic Plan and Goals 
 District Map 
 
School District Description            2 
 Location and Description of School Facilities 
 History of Facilities 
 Parcel Summary by Location 
 
Student Enrollment             3 
 School Capacities 
 Student Enrollment Trends 
 OSPI – Cohort Survival Enrollment Projections 
 SHSD 2012-2013 to 2017-2018 Projected Enrollment 
 SHSD 2012-2013 Enrollment -October 
 
Level of Service             4 
 
Construction Plans             5 
 
Finance Plan              6 
 
 

Packet page 107 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 4 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BUILDING SITE AND SCHEDULES 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
510 CHAMBERS STREET 
STEILACOOM, WA  98388 

WEB SITE:  www.steilacoom.k12.wa.us  
 
Office/Building Address Phone Number Points of Contact  
DISTRICT OFFICE  
510 Chambers Street 
Steilacoom, WA  98388 
 

(253) 983-2200 
(253) 584-7198 (fax) 

Mr. Bill Fritz - Superintendent  
Ms. LeeRae Ball -  Executive Director of 
Finance and Operations 
Ms. Susanne Beauchaine- Executive 
Director of Student Services 
Ms. Kathi Weight - Executive Director for 
Student Achievement and Human 
Resources 

CHERRYDALE PRIMARY SCHOOL  
1201 Galloway 
Steilacoom, WA  98388 
 

(253) 983-2500 
(253) 583-8478 (fax) 

Ms. Nancy McClure - Principal 
Ms. Michele Hildebrand- Office Manager 
Ms. Lanae Olson - Counselor 

CHLOE CLARK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
1700 Palisades Blvd 
DuPont, WA  98327 

(253) 583-7100 
(253) 964-0935 (fax) 

Mr. Gary Yoho - Principal 
Ms. Melissa McGann - Office Manager 
Mr. Coleman Fannin - Counselor  
 
 

SALTAR’S POINT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
908 Third Street 
Steilacoom, WA 98388 
 

(253) 983-2600 
(253) 581-9083 (fax) 

Mr. Joel Lang - Principal 
Ms. Rita Gorman - Secretary 
 Mr. Kip Gillett - Counselor  

ANDERSON ISLAND ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
13005 Camus Road 
Anderson Island, WA  98303 
 

(253) 884-4901 
(253) 884-7835 (fax) 

Ms. Kathi Weight - Administrator 
Ms. Dana Ballou, Secretary/Para Educator 
Ms. Lanae Olson - Counselor 

PIONEER MIDDLE SCHOOL  
1750 Bob’s Hollow Lane 
DuPont, WA  98327 
 
 

(253) 583-7200 
(253) 583-7292 (fax) 

Mr. Andre Stout - Principal  
Mr. John Nystrom - Assistant Principal 
Ms. Kathy Lech - Office Manager 
Ms. Rebecca Anderson - Attendance 
Secretary 
 

STEILACOOM HIGH SCHOOL  
54 Sentinel Drive 
Steilacoom, WA 98388 
 

(253) 983-2300 
(253) 983-2393 (fax) 

Mr. Brian Hanson - Principal 
Ms. Sara Graves - Assistant Principal 
Mr. Michael Miller - Assistant Principal/ 
Athletic Director  
Ms. Karen Staples - Activities Office 
Secretary   
Ms. Sharon Schiller - Accounts Payable 
Ms. Wanda Betancourt - Registrar/ 
Counseling Secretary 
 

   

 

Packet page 108 of 151

http://www.steilacoom.k12.wa.us/


 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 5 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB 1 INTRODUCTION 
 
This Capital Facilities Plan (CFP) has been developed for Steilacoom Historical School District 
No. 1 in response to the provisions of the Growth Management Act (GMA).  This report assesses 
the following: 

• The anticipated growth within the District’s boundaries; 
• The anticipated school enrollment growth through the 2012-2018 planning period; 
• Identifies the new school facilities required to meet the needs of this expanding student 

enrollment; and 
• As applicable, identifies the school impact fee calculations based on the capacity projects 

necessary to address growth needs. 
 

Residential development has historically preceded any school construction and has never 
progressed in an orderly and coordinated manner.  Selection of school sites and the construction 
of schools have generally followed the construction of new homes.  This historic process of 
school construction following residential growth has left a gap between available space and the 
student population.  As a result, schools have commonly become overcrowded. Compounding 
the situation is the required time to acquire property, plan and design facilities, acquire all 
necessary permits, and to construct facilities. 
 
In the past, relief for overcrowded schools has primarily come from local residents who have 
supported tax levies and bond issues.  Voter approval of school levies and bond issues is 
becoming more difficult as other interests vie for property tax dollars.  In addition, many existing 
residents are questioning the equity of having to pay for the educational facilities of new 
residents.  In an effort to overcome the perceived inequity of property tax supported levies and 
bond issues, school districts have sought conditions upon development activity to provide a share 
of the local financial support needed for the construction of school facilities. 
 
This Capital Facilities Plan is designed to support the use of school impact fees as provided for 
under the 1990 Growth Management Act.  Therefore, this Plan consists of: 
 

• An inventory of the existing schools, support facilities and properties owned by  
Steilacoom Historical School District No.1; 

• An enrollment history and projection for the 2012-2018 time frame; 
• An identification of the District’s current “level of service” with respect to capital 

facilities; 
• A forecast of the District’s need for new construction, modernization, and new 

construction-in-lieu-of modernization; and 
• A plan that will finance the proposed construction projects within projected funding 

capacities and clearly identify sources of public money for such purposes.  The CFP is 
designed to support school impact fees authorized by Pierce County, as implemented by 
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 and other municipalities that may collect 
school impact fees on behalf of the District. 

 
In addition, the CFP will also provide a basis for mitigation under the State Environmental 
Protection Act (SEPA) or the State Subdivision Act. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Packet page 109 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 6 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB 1 STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT GOALS 
 
 
STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT GOALS 
 
GOAL 1 Read with comprehension, write with skill, listen, observe, and interpret 

information and communicate clearly and effectively. 
 
GOAL 2 Know and apply the core concepts and principles of mathematics; social, physical, 

and life science; civics and history; geography; arts; and health and fitness. 
 
GOAL 3 Think analytically, logically, and creatively, and to integrate experience and 

knowledge to form reasoned judgments and solve problems. 
 
GOAL 4 Understand the importance of work and how performance, effort, and decisions 

directly affect career and educational opportunities. 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  

Packet page 110 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 7 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB I DISTRICT STATEMENTS AND CORE VALUES 
 
 
DISTRICT VISION STATEMENT 
 
“The best education for every student.” 
 
 
DISTRICT MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The mission statement for the Steilacoom Historical School District No.1, in partnership with our 
communities, is to educate and prepare responsible citizens who can contribute and adapt in a 
changing world. 
 
DISTRICT CORE VALUES 
 
 Academics  
 We commit to engage all students by using effective instructional practices, challenging 

students to reach their fullest potential 
 
 Collaboration 
 We practice purposeful, professional, student-centered collaboration. 
 
 Climate 
 We ensure a positive, respectful and safe learning climate, responsive to students’ 

individual needs. 
 
 Integrity 
 We commit to act with honesty and integrity, respecting all diversities. 
 
 Community 
 We welcome and encourage family and community involvement, where each member of 

the school community is a valued partner. 
 
 Accountability 
 We, the SHSD learning community, share in the responsibility for attaining academic and 

fiscal goals by providing educators with the necessary tools and resources for success. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 111 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 8 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB I DISTRICT STRATEGIC PLAN AND GOALS 
 
GOAL 1:  To expand and modernize facilities. 
 
Strategies: 
 
1.1 We will implement a plan for financing a second elementary school in DuPont/Northwest 

Landing to accommodate the increase in student enrollment. 
 

1.2 We will review options to gain square footage in the existing schools for future expansion of 
programs such as special education and other programs. 

 
1.3 We will complete the construction for expansion and modernization of the current 
Steilacoom High School. (Completed 2009)  We will review options to purchase adjacent 
property to the existing High School if it becomes available (Land purchase completed in 2011) 
for the eventual expansion for career and technical education additional classroom capacity and 
special education.    
 
1.4 We will complete the construction of the new Pioneer Middle School to facilitate increases in 
student enrollment. (Completed August 2008) 
 
1.5 We will prioritize needs for modernization of existing facilities. 
 
1.6 We will review current needs in order to establish a preventative maintenance plan to secure 
building safety and put funds aside for ongoing maintenance needs. (Preventative Plan 
established in 2011) 
 
 
GOAL 2:  To raise expectations and maximize student achievement for all students. 
 
Strategies: 
 
2.1 We will develop a five-year plan and implement clearly articulated K-12 strategies. 
 
2.2 We will align K-12 learning expectations with instruction and assessment strategies. 
 
2.3 We will develop a goal setting process that focuses staff, students, and schools on continuous 
progress towards improved achievement and career opportunities. 
 
2.4 We will implement a technology plan that will prepare our students to use technology as a 
learning tool. 
 
2.5 We will develop a district-wide computer network to assist in communication and 
management of services. 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 112 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 9 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

GOAL 3:  To develop and maintain an active partnership between schools, parents, businesses, 
and community. 
 
Strategies: 
 
3.1 We will promote shared responsibility between parents, community, and schools to 
maximize student achievement. 
 
3.2 We will encourage parent and community volunteerism in schools. 
 
3.3 We will identify and develop essential school-to-work skills through community 
partnerships. 
 
3.4 We will increase parent and community involvement in school and district decision-making. 
 
 
GOAL 4:  To provide a safe, secure and caring educational environment for all learners. 
 
Strategies: 
 
4.1 We will review procedures and develop consistency in K-12 student behavior expectations 
and discipline guidelines. 
 
4.2 We will maintain a Zero Tolerance Policy for student possession of guns and other weapons. 
 
4.3 We will review programs and instructional strategies to provide for the needs of diverse 
learners. 
 
4.4 We will maintain a Zero Tolerance Policy for drug/alcohol and tobacco use. 
 
4.5 We will maintain security of facilities and investigate the use of building security systems. 
 
4.6 We will maintain policies and procedures to prevent harassment, intimidation and bullying. 
 
GOAL 5:  To promote and support fiscal alignment with district goals. 
 
Strategies: 
 
5.1 We will allocate resources equitably to meet other needs. 
 
5.2 We will conduct a management and operational review to establish district priorities for 
improvement. 
 
5.3 We will review all fiscal expenditures and build a budget based on greatest need to improve 
student achievement (0 base). 
 
5.4 We will develop a long-range financial plan to increase reserve funding and provide for 
facility needs and preventative maintenance. 
 

Packet page 113 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 10 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
TAB I DISTRICT MAP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steilacoom Historical 
School District No.1  

Packet page 114 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 11 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB II LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION OF SCHOOL FACILITIES  
 
The chart below lists and describes each school facility site within the District.  This represents 
the most accurate inventory of SF areas for the individual facilities within the district as 
reviewed by District staff.  The numbers below do not include SF areas for portable buildings but 
do include covered outdoor play areas. The Washington State’s Office of the Superintendent for 
Public Instruction’s School Facility Inventory of Permanent School Facilities Report will be 
updated per the numbers listed below.  
 

2012 Steilacoom Historical School District Facility Inventory  

School Location Grades SF as of 2006 
Added/New 

SF 

Year 
SF 

added 
2012 Total  

SF 
Anderson Island ES Anderson Island K-5 1,680  2,865  2007       4,545  
Cherrydale Primary Steilacoom K-3w/full day K and pre-K 40,487 0       40,487  
Salter’s Point ES Steilacoom 4-5 (all district) 53,039 0       53,039  
Chloe Clark ES  DuPont K-3 w/full day K and pre-K 22,100 37,734  2006     59,835  
Pioneer Middle School  DuPont 6-8 (all district) 43,017 104,707  2008   104,707  
Steilacoom High School  Steilacoom 9-12 (all district) 10112,800 23,091 2009   135,891  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 115 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 12 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB II HISTORY OF FACILITIES 
 
 

1. School District Building Data 
 
Date  Building   Cost   Location 
 
1851  Log Building   Unknown  Main & Commercial 
1858  First Public School  $450   Starling & Frederick 
      Contributions/Partial Payment 
1892  Second Public School  $10,000.00  Chambers & Sequalish 
1916-17 Third Public School  $15,000.00  Chambers & Sequalish 
1952  All Purpose School  $133,953.00  Chambers & Nisqually 
1962  Cherrydale School  $183,597.00  Galloway and C 
1966  Cherrydale Addition  $175,646.00  Galloway and C 
1968  Pioneer Addition  $405,422.00  Chambers & Nisqually 
1969  Silver Beach Site  $42,000.00  SOLD 
1972  Saltar’s Point School  $605,860.00  Third & Beech 
1976  Oakbrook Site   $42,500.00  SOLD 

Consolidation with Anderson Island and DuPont School Districts 
1979 Acquisition of Laughbon Jr./Sr. High School; Anderson Island and Harriet Taylor 

schools 
1981  Steilacoom High School    Sentinel Drive 
1986  District Office      Steilacoom, WA 
2000  Chloe Clark Elementary $1.7 million*  Palisade Boulevard 
2006  Chloe Clark Elementary $6.0 million  DuPont, WA   
  School Addition/Modernization 
2007  Anderson Island Elementary $951,460  Anderson Island, WA 
  New Multipurpose Room 
2008  New Pioneer Middle School  $34.0 million   DuPont, WA  
2008-2009 Steilacoom HS Addition $27.0 million   Steilacoom, WA  
  /Modernization    
2011  Pioneer Middle School  $461,967  DuPont, WA 

Classroom Air Conditioning  
 

2. Land/Parcel holdings for future growth 
 

Until 2012, the District owned a 30 acre parcel located in the City of DuPont at the intersection 
of Center Drive and International Place. The parcel's east boundary faces Steilacoom/DuPont 
Highway. The District sold this property and used a portion of the sale proceeds to acquire a 
14.71 acre site located on Manchester Place within the City of DuPont and a 5.3 acre site located 
on International Place within the City of DuPont.  
 
This newly acquired 14.71 acre site in DuPont is intended to serve as the location for a future 
new elementary school. The 5.3 acre site on International Place is ideally suited for 
transportation and maintenance facilities. 
        
In its long range planning, the District has analyzed smaller parcels it owns that cannot support 
the size of facilities at any grade level and considered the sale of those parcels to fund its long 

Packet page 116 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 13 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

range capital facility or future land acquisition funding strategies. The District completed the 
process necessary to declare the parcel at Saltar’s Point Elementary School as surplus property. 
The 15.13 acre parcel was sold to Pierce County Conservation Futures in October 2008.  
 
In October 2008, the Board directed the Superintendent to have the Cherrydale Woods property 
surveyed and divided into three parcels. In 2011, the District sold two of the three parcels behind 
Cherrydale Primary School to Pierce County as a part of the Conservation Futures Conservatory 
for permanent County green space/wetlands. The remaining parcel, Parcel C, is vacant and was 
recently declared surplus.  The District is in the process of finalizing the sale of Parcel C to the 
Town of Steilacoom.     
 
In 2011, The District purchased a 13.5 acre parcel directly north of Steilacoom High School. It is 
the intent of the District and the Board to utilize this site for a future addition to the high school, 
additional parking and athletic fields (i.e., fast pitch field).    
 
3. History of Capital Facility Planning and Construction  
 
To meet increasing population and provide a sturdier building, the Town of Steilacoom approved 
in 1913 the construction of a new brick structure at the cost of $15,000. Until the new building 
was erected, the old building was used. 
 
During the early part of the 1990’s, about a dozen portable classrooms were placed to 
accommodate the growing enrollment at Cherrydale Primary School, Saltar’s Point Elementary, 
and Pioneer Middle School. After the Town of Steilacoom placed a moratorium on the number 
of portables that could be sited, the District held public information meetings designed to inform 
residents about the critical situation. When the bond election was held in 1996 to approve general 
obligation bonds of $38,000,000, Steilacoom voters rejected it. A second election, held in the 
following year, however, was approved. 
 
In 1997, voters approved by over 60% a proposition for construction and improvements to the 
District’s elementary schools and high school but rejected a second proposition to build a new 
middle school.  
 
Instead, the old Steilacoom School serving as Pioneer Middle School underwent an extensive 
retro-fit to make the building earthquake safe. In addition, the cafeteria was remodeled and 
enlarged and the gymnasium floor was replaced. The results of that retro-fit were demonstrated 
during the February 28, 2001 earthquake. A portion of Proposition #1, or $2,003,000, was 
designated for Technology—computers, software and related equipment.  
 
Following approval of the 1997 Capital Facilities Bond, plans were started for work on 
Cherrydale Primary School, Saltar’s Point Elementary School, and Anderson Island Elementary 
School. Arrangements were made to house Cherrydale Primary students in vacant classrooms 
throughout the Clover Park School District, while Saltar’s Point Elementary students were 
transported to Parkway Elementary School at Ft. Lewis. Cherrydale Primary students returned to 
their renovated school in February 1999, while Saltar’s Point Elementary students returned to 
their new school in the fall of that year.  To accommodate school-age students in the 
DuPont/Northwest Landing community, ground was broken in fall 2000 for a new elementary 
school. Chloe Clark Elementary School was dedicated in August 2001 and 180 students were 
enrolled for the following school year. 

Packet page 117 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 14 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

 
In April 2002, the board chartered the Facilities Committee to gather and analyze information, 
evaluate facilities options and conduct hearings about the District’s facilities. A vision statement 
was prepared to guide the facilities planning and policy process. 

 
The committee’s recommendations were to: 
 

1. Build a new high school at the district-owned DuPont, WA site. 
2. Convert the current high school to a middle school. 
3. Complete Chloe Clark Elementary school. 

 
In May 2003, the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1's Board of Directors unanimously 
approved Resolution 472-05-21-03.  The resolution supported the recommendations of the 
Facilities Committee and the Board’s Long-Term Facilities Vision.  
 
In 2004 and 2005, the Board reviewed the student enrollment projections against its 2005 State 
Study and Survey and studied the earlier recommendations by the Facilities Committee.  The 
Board of Directors studied the long range facility plan further.  Based on Pierce County and 
District demographics data, projected enrollment, near and long term financial plans, assessed 
valuations and District land capacities, the Board of Directors voted to amend the previously 
adopted resolution to permit the District to construct a replacement new middle school, expand 
and modernize the high school, increase the capacity of Chloe Clark Elementary School and 
replace the multi-purpose room at Anderson Island Elementary School.  
 
On May 17, 2005, District voters approved Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 to issue 
$55.9 million dollars in general obligation bonds to finance a 6-year construction program.  The 
Pierce County Auditor’s Office validated the vote on May 27, 2005 with Approved 2,631 
(62.57%); Rejected 1,547 (37.43%) votes.  The District anticipated receiving approximately $7.1 
million dollars in state match dollars. 
 
The 2005 bond projects included: 
 

• Completing Phase II of Chloe Clark Elementary School  
• Building a new middle school 
• Building an addition to Steilacoom High School  
• Modernizing the existing portion of Steilacoom High School  
• Building a new multi-purpose room at Anderson Island Elementary School 
• Completing other priority renovations/modernization projects  

 
Bond sales were executed in two phases: June 2005, $22 million dollars and July 2006, $33.9 
million dollars.  The 2005 bond projects are complete. 
 
The anticipated Washington State Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction ‘state match’ 
was approximately $7.1 million dollars for this program.  Due to prudent planning and a higher 
than anticipated state match cost per square foot factor, the District received $5,087,870 in state 
match allocation for Pioneer Middle School and $12,078,446 for Steilacoom High School.   
 
In 2011, The District sold to Pierce County two parcels totaling 3.0 acres as part of a land 
conservation grant program. This area is commonly referred to as the Cherrydale Woods.  This 

Packet page 118 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 15 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

land is adjacent to Cherrydale Elementary School.  The District is in the process of finalizing the 
sale to the Town of Steilacoom a 1.64 acre parcel of land, referred to as Parcel C, next to the 
school.  
 
Also in 2011, air conditioning was added to the classrooms at Pioneer Middle School. Snow 
guards were added to the roofs as well.  
 
Anderson Island Elementary School’s administrative and cafeteria building received 
improvements to provide more functional cafeteria, kitchen, administrative staff and community 
areas. The campus wide fire alarm system was serviced and has been brought up to current code 
standards. 
 
The parcel and structure known as the "Yellow House" located to the east of the District Office 
at the SE corner of Chambers and Sequalish Street was sold in late 2012. 
 
The board passed in November 2012 Resolution 787-10-24-12 to approve the addition of a 
modular building containing two classrooms to be placed at Saltar's Point Elementary to 
accommodate enrollment growth.    
 
 
4. Future Capital Facility Plans 
 
The district’s projected enrollment growth will continue to be focused in the near term at the 
elementary grade levels and in particular the City of DuPont area where the population growth 
continues.   In addition, in 2010, the Washington State Legislature passed House Bill 2776, 
which requires implementation of full day Kindergarten by the school year 2017-18.  To meet 
these capacity needs, the Board envisions the potential need for another elementary school in 
DuPont.  Chloe Clark Elementary School’s Phase II & III projects have been completed.  The 
Board of Directors and the District have explored options for the location of a new elementary 
school and have found the newly acquired 14.71 acres to be very well suited as the location for a 
future elementary school.  The District plans to construct the first phase of this school during the 
six year planning period of this Capital Facilities Plan.      
 
In addition, the district has reviewed options to increase capacity at all of the primary and 
elementary schools to allow for future expansion of existing programs such as special education 
and other programs. The addition of a modular building containing two classrooms is planned for 
utilization at the start of 2013-2014 school year.     
 
The Board of Directors expressed the need to relocate and build a facility to house maintenance 
and transportation staff and equipment for the District. With the sale of the 30 acre parcel in 
DuPont and the consequential acquisition of 5.3 acres on International Place in DuPont, 
conceptual design has begun for utilizing the 5.3 acre site for a transportation facility. 
 
In 2008, the Board of Directors gave the Citizens Advisory Committee the task of exploring 
options regarding the buildings that make up the old Pioneer Middle School site. The 
Committee’s recommendation included consolidation of all SHSD administrative offices into the 
1918 Building since the current administrative facility does not provide adequate space. In 2011, 
the district received a state energy grant that included a new heating system for the 1918 
building. A conceptual design and feasibility study are under way to better understand the 

Packet page 119 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 16 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

associated costs in converting the 1918 Building into an administrative building that would 
enable all of the District’s administrative staff to be housed in one building.    
 
Speculation on Anderson Island’s growth may, in the long term, impact Steilacoom elementary 
school enrollment growth.  
 
The District’s 2005 Capital Improvement Program and the approved conditional use permit for 
Steilacoom High School made provisions for the addition of four future classrooms onto the new 
design of Steilacoom High School.  In addition, the District reviewed the option to purchase 
adjacent property to the High School to allow for future expansion.  This 13.50 acre parcel was 
purchased by the District in late 2010. 
 
At Pioneer Middle School, four additional classrooms could be added onto the new school but a 
separate conditional use permit would be required.  These potential build-outs could 
accommodate up to 125 additional students at the middle and high school levels.  
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 120 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 17 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB II PARCEL SUMMARY BY LOCATION  
 
The following tab contains information on the District’s parcels.   
 
The list of parcels and approximate square feet data is from Pierce County Assessor-Treasurer 
online database files: 
 
 
School/Facility/Parcel 
Description 

Address 
City 

Pierce County 
Tax ID parcel # 

Approximate 
acreage 

Notes 

Steilacoom High School 54 Sentinel 
Steilacoom 

7615000681 32.50 With two easements from 
DSHS. 13.50 acres were 
purchased north of the HS 
in late 2010. 

Old Pioneer Middle School 
Site 

511 Chamber 
Steilacoom 

2305000600 3.26 Currently considering to 
convert into an 
administrative building 

Bus Barn and Upper Field 710 Chambers 
Steilacoom 

6655200310 
6655200160 

1.61 
1.61 

Considering selling 
parcels 

Saltar’s Point Elementary 
School 

908 3rd St 
Steilacoom 

7260000072 7.69 2008 New parcel number 
7260000072 

Saltar’s Point Elementary 
School Vacant Undeveloped 
Parcel 

Steilacoom 0219063073 15.13 Sold to Pierce County 
Futures Conservation Oct. 
2008  

Cherrydale Primary School,  1201 Galloway 
Steilacoom 

0219052048 
 

7.24  
 

Parcels 0219052045 and 
0219052046 were sold to 
Pierce County in 2011. 

Cherrydale Primary School 
Vacant Undeveloped Parcel 

XXX B St 
Steilacoom 

0219052047 1.64 Recently declared surplus; 
pending sale 

Chloe Clark Elementary 
School 

1700 Palisades Blvd 
DuPont 

0119264010 10.01  

Anderson Island Elementary 
School 

13005 
Anderson Island 

0119052002 N/A Parcel is owned by the AI 
Park Board and is leased 
to SHSD  

District Office  510 Chambers St 
Steilacoom 

2305000651 .20  

Parcel with Single-Family 
Structure 

1314 Nisqually 
Steilacoom 

2305000640 .17 Sold in 2012 

Vacant Undeveloped Parcel Center/International 
Drive. DuPont 

3000390060 30.84  Sold in 2012 

Vacant Undeveloped Parcel N/A 
Steilacoom 

7615000022 13.5 Purchased in 2010 

Vacant Undeveloped Parcel Manchester Place 
DuPont 

3001000010- 
3001000050 

14.71 Purchased in 2012 

Vacant Undeveloped Parcel International Place 
DuPont 

3000390282 5.34 Purchased in 2012 

 
 
 
 
  

Packet page 121 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 18 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB III STUDENT ENROLLMENT TRENDS 
 
1. DISTRICT GROWTH 
 
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 has reviewed historical demographic trends and 
actual enrollments.  It is the belief of the District that residential growth within the City of 
DuPont will have a slight increase in 2013 and in the near future. This should result in a 
consistent K-12 student population increase from City of DuPont based students. The Steilacoom 
based student population is most likely to remain stable with a potential slight decrease as this 
has been the trend for the last year.  The combined student population from the Town of 
Steilacoom and the City of DuPont is expected to result in a leveling off of the recent district 
wide decrease in current student enrollment.  
 
Since 2002, the District has experienced significant student enrollment (actual and projected).   
In 2006, the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 entered into an agreement with 
K12.com to develop Washington State’s first statewide Virtual Academy (WAVA).  This 
academy included grades K-8 and saw an initial enrollment of 1,400 students in its first year of 
operation.  The District anticipated enrollment of over 3,000 students within the first five years.  
This program was developed for the large number of home school students residing in 
Washington State.  In October 2011, 1,692 students were enrolled in the WAVA.  There had 
been a steady decrease in enrollment throughout the 2010-2011 and 2011-2012 school years. At 
the end of the 2011-2012 school year, the program was terminated. 
 
The District’s elementary school enrollment (Grades K-5) has grown from 966 students in 2003 
to 2,815 students in 2011 (October enrollment).  This explosive growth was attributed to the 
build out of the Northwest Landing (DuPont) area and WAVA. When comparing elementary 
level student enrollment numbers at the brick and mortar level only, enrollment has increased 
from 966 students in 2003 to 1,396 students in 2012.   
 
During that same period, the Middle School (grades 6-8) student enrollment had grown from 529 
students to 1,816 students.  Again these numbers included students in WAVA.  The brick and 
mortar enrollment for the middle school increased from 529 students in 2003 to 730 students in 
2012.  
 
Overall student enrollment for grades 9-12 increased from 675 students in 2003 to 837 (808.4 
FTE) students in 2012.  A potential situation existed whereby a portion of the WAVA students 
could have become students in the District’s brick and mortar facilities. 
 
The actual and projected growth of the elementary school student population within the District 
led the District to develop and implement a three year, phased grade/school realignment plan. 
This plan as outlined below was implemented at the beginning of the 2009-2010 school year. 
 

a. Anderson Island Elementary School Grades K to 5th 
b. Cherrydale Primary School:   Grades K to 3rd 
c. Chloe Clark Elementary School:   Grades K to 3rd  
d. Saltar’s Point Elementary School:  Grades 4th to 5th  
e. Pioneer Middle School:     Grades 6th to 8th  
f. Steilacoom High School:    Grades 9th to 12th  

 

Packet page 122 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 19 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

2. ENROLLMENT 
 
The Washington State Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) provides enrollment 
projections based on the “Cohort Survival” method.  This method of enrollment projection uses 
historic patterns of student progression by grade level to measure the portion of students moving 
from one grade level up to the next cohort or grade.  This ratio or survival rate is used in 
conjunction with current birth rates as a base for statewide enrollment projections.  The OSPI 
system is useful, but has obvious inadequacies in representing the unique growth conditions of 
individual school districts.  Historically, OSPI projections in growing school districts tend to 
underestimate the actual student enrollment growth.  Furthermore, the OSPI projections do not 
anticipate new students from new development within the District. 
 
School enrollment growth and distribution over the next six years in Steilacoom School District 
will be influenced by several factors.  A primary factor will be overall population growth in the 
District.  A variety of housing developments are anticipated within the District boundaries 
primarily within the City of DuPont although at a slower pace than anticipated several years ago 
due to the recent economic slow-down. Joint Base Lewis McChord is currently still experiencing 
some growth.  The transition to full day Kindergarten will also impact capacity.  
 
The establishment of the Urban Growth Boundaries by the Pierce County Council will further 
influence which geographic areas will grow and develop.  
 
3. FUTURE GROWTH 
 
The District has adopted a combination of cohort survival projection technique utilized by 
Washington State’s Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction and student enrollment 
general numbers resulting from construction and occupation of new residential construction.  
There is still some continuing growth in the District, including the build out of Northwest 
Landing and other single-family and multi-family developments currently under construction 
within the City of DuPont.  
 
The following table utilizes Cohort Survival analysis developed by the Office of Superintendent 
of Public Instruction to determine funding eligibility.  An analysis of this table shows significant 
growth in elementary, middle school and high school enrollments.  However, OSPI’s Cohort 
Survival analysis includes enrollment projections based on brick and mortar and student 
enrollment in WAVA which is no longer a program operated through Steilacoom Historical 
School District. The District has instead established its own enrollment projection data based on 
brick and mortar students only. See page 21 for the enrollment projection table.  It should be 
noted that the enrollment projections on page 21 are based on current FTE, which does not 
consider the transition to full day Kindergarten.  As such, the District expects elementary 
enrollment in 2018 to be greater than the figures shown on page 21.  Future updates to the 
Capital Facilities Plan will consider full day Kindergarten projections in the enrollment 
projection summary.  
 
  

Packet page 123 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 20 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

  

Packet page 124 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 21 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

 

  

Packet page 125 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 22 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

  
 
 
 
 
  

 

Packet page 126 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 23 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB IV LEVEL OF SERVICE 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
The Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that school districts provide “level of service” or 
“school capacity” data as a component of their Capital Facilities Plan (CFP).  The GMA was 
developed, in part, to help ensure that public services, including schools, necessary to support 
development shall be adequate to serve said development at the time the development is 
available for occupancy and use, without decreasing current service levels below locally 
established minimum standards.  In other words, each public service needs to clearly define their 
service level so that service level can be maintained in the face of new development. 
 
2. DEFINITION 
 
In a generic sense, the “level of service” is an indicator of the extent or degree of service 
provided by each type of capital facility.  Level of service is quantifiable and objective measures, 
such as gallons of water per customer or acres of park per capita. 
 
With respect to public schools, the “level of service” is a measure of the school buildings 
provided for the purpose of supporting the instruction of students.  Most often, this measure of 
service is reported as the number of students a school is designed to accommodate (i.e., the 
Practical Capacity).  However, the number of square feet each student is afforded (i.e., Space 
Allocation) is also used as a measure of service. 
 
School facility and student capacity needs are dictated by the types and amount of space required 
to accommodate the District’s adopted educational program.  The educational program standards 
that typically drive facility space needs include grade configuration, optimum facility size, class 
size, educational program offerings, classroom utilization and scheduling requirements, and the 
use of portable classroom facilities. 
 
In addition to factors that affect the amount of space required, government mandates and 
community expectations may affect how classroom space is used.  Traditional educational 
programs offered by school districts are often supplemented by non-traditional or special 
programs such as special education, bilingual education, remediation, alcohol and drug 
education, AIDS education, preschool programs, computer labs, music programs, etc.  These 
special or non-traditional educational programs can have a significant impact on the available 
student capacity of school facilities.  Currently, Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 has 
350 (12.12%) students of its total student population in Special Education Programs. 
 
Variations in student capacity between schools are often a result of special or non-traditional 
programs offered at specific schools.  These special programs require classroom space, which 
can reduce the permanent capacity of some of the buildings housing these programs.  Some 
students, for example, leave their regular classroom for a short period of time to receive 
instruction in these special programs.  Newer schools within the District have been designed to 
accommodate many of these programs.  However, older schools often require space 
modifications to accommodate special programs, and in some circumstances, these modifications 
may reduce the overall classroom capacities of the buildings. 
District educational program standards will undoubtedly change in the future as a result of 
changes in the program year, special programs, class sizes, grade span configurations, use of new 

Packet page 127 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 24 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

technology, and other physical aspects of the school facilities.  The school space inventory will 
be reviewed periodically and adjusted for any changes to the educational program standards.  
These changes will also be reflected in future updates of this Capital Facilities Plan (CFP). 
 
3. THE SPACE ALLOCATION MODEL 
 
Steilacoom Historical School District’s “level of service” has been defined in terms of the 
amount of permanent and portable space that is provided for the instruction of each elementary, 
middle school, and senior high school student.  In other words, the “level of service” is described 
in terms of each student’s proportionate share of the District’s permanent and portable school 
facilities. 
 
The Space Allocation Model (SAM) was selected over the Practical Capacity Model (PCM) for 
several reasons.  Those reasons are as follows: 
 
1. The SAM is a well-established and familiar model.  WAC 392-343-035 sets forth four (4) 

factors that govern the level of state assistance provided to school districts for the funding 
of new school facilities.  One of those factors is a square foot per student space allocation 
(i.e., 90 square feet per student in grades K-6, 117 square feet per student in grades 7 and 
8, and 130 square feet per student in grades 9-12 and 144 square feet for students with 
disabilities. (Effective July 1, 2006). 

 
As discussed above, the space allocation figures set forth in WAC are square feet used for 
the purpose of determining a school district’s eligibility for state matching funds.  
Clearly, those space allowances do not reflect an accurate total of the true space needed 
to carry out the instructional programs of any particular school district.  However, the 
state’s square footage figures are very familiar to anyone associated with new school 
construction in the State of Washington. 
 

2. The SAM is an easier model to calculate.  Establishing the practical enrollment capacity 
of an elementary school is not particularly troublesome.  However, trying to accurately 
assess the practical capacity of a junior or senior high school is extremely difficult.  
Teacher planning periods, specialty areas like food laboratories, music rooms, shop 
classrooms, etc., late arrival and early dismissal are just a few examples of the 
complexities of a secondary school’s instructional program. 

 
3. The SAM is also a much easier model to explain.  The straightforward calculations of the 

SAM are not difficult to understand, especially to someone who is not totally familiar 
with the complexities of the instructional programs of secondary schools. 

 
The District seldom considers portables as being ideal instructional space for students and/or 
staff members.  By design, portable classrooms separate their occupants from the rest of a 
school’s student body and/or staff members.  In addition, the increased enrollments that portables 
afford serve to tax the “core” facilities of the permanent building(s); such spaces as the 
gymnasium, the library, the restrooms, the main office, and the food service facilities. 
 

Packet page 128 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 25 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

4. SUMMARY 
 
The Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that school districts provide “level of service” or 
“school capacity” data to support requests for mitigation or impact fees from residential 
developers.  With respect to public schools, the “level of service” is a quantifiable measure of the 
school buildings provided for the purpose of supporting the instruction of students. 
 
A school district’s “level of service” is usually reported as the Practical Capacity of its school 
buildings or as a “square foot per student” Space Allocation.  Steilacoom Historical School 
District No. 1 has elected to define its “level of service” in terms of each student’s share of the 
District’s permanent school facilities. 
 
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 has adopted an organization that houses kindergarten 
through fifth grade in elementary schools, sixth, seventh, and eighth grade in middle schools, and 
ninth through twelfth grade in high schools. 
 
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 has adopted a traditional calendar beginning in early 
September and ending in mid-June. 
 
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 has adopted a traditional daily schedule with 
academic classes beginning between 7:35 a.m. and 9:35 a.m. and ending mid-afternoon. 
 
Although Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 continues to study alternate organizations, 
calendars, and schedules, the District believes the adopted organization is educationally sound 
and reflects community values. 
 
The educational program taught by Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 includes 
individual and small group work as well as full class activities.  Portable classrooms do not allow 
the full range of educational activities envisioned by Steilacoom School District, and are, 
therefore, considered unacceptable as permanent classroom space and are excluded from our 
level of service calculation.  Portables are considered adequate only for supplemental programs. 
The capacity for each facility is established by multiplying the permanent classrooms available 
by the contractual limitations on average students per class.  Core facilities and special use 
facilities are compared to classroom capacity to confirm that facility capacity is not limited by 
limitations in core facilities.  If types of facilities are not balanced with program requirements, 
capacity is optimized by assuming the capacity constraint is mitigated by constructing new 
facilities to balance facility with the program prior to establishing a level of service for new 
students. 
 
 
Washington State’s Office Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) space allocation model 
(#SF/Student) is found below.  These are the minimum levels of service that the District uses as a 
guide for planning its CFP.  The SF/student figures were adopted by OSPI in July 2006. 
 

Facility WA State OSPI Space 
Allocation Model  

High School 130 SF/Student 
Middle School  117 SF/Student 
Elementary    90 SF/Student 
Students with disabilities 144 SF/Student 

Packet page 129 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 26 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

 
 
STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 - LEVEL OF SERVICE  
 
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 adopts a level of service based on maximizing 
enrollment in current facilities with modifications to minimize the SF/Student.  The District’s 
level of service, as adopted, reflects the area SF of each type of facility based on capacity.  The 
amount of SF reflected below is up to date following the completion of the District’s most recent 
Capital Improvement Program. 
 

Facility Area (SF) Capacity 
(design or 
projected) 

Level of Service 
based on Practical 
Capacity Model 

Actual 2012 FTE 
Enrollment 

Steilacoom High School 135,891 850 159.87 808.4 
New Pioneer Middle School  104,707 850 123.18 727.13 
Elementary (Cherrydale, Saltar’s 
Point, Chloe Clark, Anderson Island) 

157,955 1,571 97.50 1,351.72 

 
The level of service is presented as an indicator of the extent or degree of service provided by 
each type capital facility.  It is presented in a square foot per student format for convenience.  
The level of service is dictated by the amount of space required to accommodate the District’s 
adopted educational program.  The LOS will change as the District changes its educational 
program and it must be reviewed and modified periodically. 
 
School District Cost Per Student 
 
Each year Steilacoom School District provides to Pierce County the costs expended per student 
as an update to the Capital Facilities Plan.  Building and equipment costs at each educational 
facility are rounded up and reflect the District’s capital improvement campaign costs as 
completed in 2010. 
 
School Facility Building Costs  Equipment Costs Total Costs  
Anderson Island Elementary School $    946,000 $    50,000 $     996,000 
Cherrydale Primary School $ 9,457,000 $  400,000 $  9,857,000 
Chloe Clark Elementary School $ 9,727,000 $  450,000 $10,177,000 
Saltar’s Point Elementary School $ 6,765,000 $  350,000 $  7,115,000 
New Pioneer Middle School $34,244,000 $1,800,000 $36,044,000 
Steilacoom High School $30,597,000 $   630,000 $31,227,000 
 
 
 
 
The current cost per student based upon capacity enrollment figures is as follows: 
 
  Elementary Student   $18,101 
   Middle School Student  $42,405 
   High School Student   $36,738 

Packet page 130 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 27 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB V THE DISTRICT’S CONSTRUCTION PLAN 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
From district to district, it is common to find variations in the grade level configurations, class 
size requirements and instructional programs depending upon a local community’s educational 
philosophy and the needs of the students to be served.  Such variations between districts do 
impact the design and the cost of newly constructed school facilities. 
 
Future projected facilities could be developed by a facility planning committee comprised of the 
following: 
 
 School Board Members 
 Superintendent of School District 
 Staff and Community Members 
 Town of Steilacoom and City of DuPont Officials 
 Design professionals (Architect/Engineers)  
 Project/Construction Management professionals 
 
In addition, future updates of this report will identify the District’s need for new construction of 
support facilities, the modernization of school and support facilities and the new construction-in-
lieu-of modernization of school and support facilities. 
 
 
2. THE NEW CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM 
 
The ability to move forward on the construction of any new school facility in the Steilacoom 
Historical School District No. 1 hinges on three (3) factors.  First, the District needs to have local 
funding available to pay for the cost of new school facilities.  Normally, school districts secure 
the majority of their local funds through the sale of general obligation bonds, as approved by the 
qualified voters of their districts.  The authority to issue and sell such bonds rests in the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Washington, including RCW 28A.530.010 and RCW 
84.52.056. 
 
The State of Washington has set forth site size standards, as defined in WAC 392-342-020.  
Specifically, for an elementary school, the minimum standard is five (5) acres plus an additional 
one (1) acre for each one hundred (100) pupils of a school’s maximum enrollment.  For junior 
and senior high schools, the minimum standard is ten (10) acres plus an additional one (1) acre 
for each one hundred (100) pupils of a school’s maximum enrollment.  These recommended 
acreages provide space for the school building(s) and the appropriate support facilities such as 
play fields, athletic facilities and parking. 
 

Packet page 131 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 28 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

Third, and of particular importance to Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1, is the 
eligibility for State School Construction Assistance.  Such State assistance is used along with 
local funds to pay for the cost of new school facilities.  However, State monies cannot be used to 
purchase school sites, to make off-site improvements and/or fund those specific items spoken to 
in WAC 392-343-120.  The formula for determining the exact amount of State funding 
assistance a district can receive is set forth in WAC 392-27-020. 
 
To address capacity needs, the District plans to construct Phase I of a new elementary school in 
the City of DuPont.  The District is in early planning stages for this school but expects that it will 
be available for occupancy by 2018.  The District’s voters will need to approve a bond measure 
to fund the construction of this school.   
 
 
3. SUMMARY 
 
To accommodate enrollment growth, Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 completed the 
2005 Capital Improvement Program which benefitted four schools.  The completion of Phases II 
and III to Chloe Clark Elementary School resulted in a student capacity increase from 175 to 656 
students. The 2,865 square foot multipurpose building at Anderson Island Elementary was added 
to accommodate up to 50 students.  The replacement new Pioneer Middle School, which can 
hold 850 students, opened in August 2008.  The addition and modernization of the existing 
Steilacoom High School was completed in 2009.  Steilacoom High School can now hold 850 
students. 
  
Due to potential future growth in the district, particularly in the elementary grade levels and as a 
result of the implementation of full day Kindergarten, the District plans to construct Phase I of  a 
new elementary school in DuPont within the six year planning period of this Capital Facilities 
Plan. In addition, near term planning will include development options of the recently purchased 
property at the high school sight, District administrative space requirements, a new transportation 
facility, and a new maintenance facility. 
 
 
  

Packet page 132 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 29 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

TAB VI THE DISTRICT’S FINANCE PLAN 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
The Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 clearly recognizes the long-term value of capital 
facilities planning.  The execution of the 2005 Capital Improvement Program, discussed earlier 
in this report, helped address the District’s need for permanent facilities to accommodate 
students from new housing developments.   
 
The District’s long-planned modernization of its older facilities (Cherrydale, Saltar’s Point, and 
Anderson Island Elementary Schools) and construction of a future elementary school in DuPont 
is dependent on a means of financing modernization or new construction.  The costs associated 
with new construction and modernization identified in the District’s Construction Plan and 
anticipated state and local funding representation are presented in Tab 5. Steilacoom Historical 
School District No. 1 has developed an Impact Fee methodology that is based upon the Pierce 
County school impact fee ordinance. 
 
In this CFP, based on current enrollment projections and the need to construct a new elementary 
school to meet capacity needs related to growth, the District is requesting school impact fees.  .   
 
 
In conclusion, the District’s Funding Plan identifies the specific funding sources, amounts of 
funding, and the unique relationships that exist between funding sources for the projects spelled 
out in the District’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
2. COST FACTORS 
 
Factors:  A number of factors influence the total cost and, specifically, the local share of any 
new school construction project.  The major factors that impact the cost of new school 
construction are as follows: 
 
1. The per acre cost of school sites will vary considerably from district to district.  In 

general, the more urban the district tends to be, the more costly the school sites. 
 
2. The acreage of available property and the use ability of acreage will not always match the 

preferred school site sizes. 
 
3. The proximity of needed utilities (i.e., water, sewer, electricity, etc.) and roadways to a 

new school site are oftentimes a significant cost variable. 
 
4. As mentioned earlier, the nature of the instructional programs housed in school facilities 

drastically impact the cost of those facilities.  The square foot cost of senior high schools 
is almost always higher than elementary and middle schools.  The square footage costs of 
middle schools are usually higher than elementary schools.  Specialized facilities for 
Vocational and Special Education programs can also increase construction costs. 

 
5. The posture of the local governmental planning agencies (i.e., City or County) will affect 

such items as off-site street improvements, landscaping, street signaling, and signage, etc. 

Packet page 133 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 30 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

 
6. The “bidding climate” at the time a new school project comes on line is terribly 

important.  Normally, the less construction work available the more competitive the 
general contractors become and vise-versa. 

 
7. The experiences and competence of the lowest bidding and general contractor and their 

major subcontractors can also impact the final cost of any new school project. 
 
8. The State’s “funding assistance percentage”, as determined in accordance with the 

formula set forth in RCW 28A.525.166, establishes the relationship between the local and 
state funding of any new school construction project. 

 
9. The enrollment projection provisions of the State’s “space allocations” determine just 

how much area of a new school facility will be eligible for State School Construction 
Funding Assistance.  Building a new school (i.e., elementary, middle, senior high) 
without full “unhoused” eligibility increases the amount of local funds that have to go 
into a project. 

 
10. The State funding assistance formula also impacts the level of state financial assistance.  

See WAC 392-343-060. 
 
Site Acquisition:  The first major expense of any new school construction project is the cost to 
purchase the site.  Property acquisition cannot be funded with State School Construction Funding 
Assistance.  Land costs are strictly a local school district expense. 
 
In addition to the location, site size and availability to utilities, other factors can also impact the 
cost of school sites.  For example, the general condition of the real estate market, zoning and the 
overall construction suitability of a site do influence the price. 
 
Construction Estimates:  The second major expense of any new school construction project is 
the cost of actually developing the site and constructing the buildings(s).  Such costs include 
payment for planning, designing, engineering, constructing, furnishing, and equipping new 
school facilities.  In addition, at times, new portable classrooms are purchased and sited at new 
schools and/or existing portable classrooms are moved to new school sites. 
 
 
3. FUNDING SOURCES 
 
School districts utilize budgets consisting of a number of discrete funds.  However, for the most 
part, the capital needs of any school system are addressed with the Capital Projects Fund and the 
Debt Service Fund. 
 
 The Capital Projects fund is used for purposes such as:  (a) to finance the purchase and 

development of school sites; (b) the construction of new facilities and the modernization 
of existing facilities; and (c) the purchase of initial equipment, library books and 
textbooks for new facilities.  Revenues accruing to the Capital Project Fund come 
primarily from bond sale proceeds, capital levy collections, and state matching funds.  
However, Revenues from the General Fund, the sale of property and contributions can 

Packet page 134 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 31 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

also be accrued to the Capital Projects Fund.  School impact fees and mitigation fees are 
maintained in segregated accounts. 
 

  The Debt Service Fund is used as a mechanism to pay for bonds.  When a bond issue 
passes, a school district sells bonds that have a face value and an interest rate.  Local 
property taxes are adjusted to provide the funds necessary to meet the approved periodic 
payments on sold bonds.  The proceeds from the taxes collected for this purpose are 
deposited in the Debt Service Fund and drawn out for payments at the appropriate times. 
 

As noted earlier, school districts receive funds for capital program purposes from a variety of 
sources.  Those sources are described as follows: 
 
Bonds:  Bonds are financial instruments having a face value and an interest rate, which is 
determined at the time and by the conditions of their sale.  Bonds are backed by the “full faith 
and credit” of the issuing school district and may be paid from proceeds derived from a specific 
increase in the property taxes for that purpose.  The increase in the taxes results in an “excess 
levy” of taxes beyond the constitutional limit, so the bonds must be approved by a vote of the 
people in the jurisdiction may not exceed five (5) percent of the assessed value of the property 
within that jurisdiction at the time of issuance.  Bonds are multi-year financial instruments, 
generally issued for 10-20 years.  Because of their long-lasting impact, they require both an 
extraordinary plurality of votes and a specific minimum number of voters for validation.  The 
positive votes must equal or exceed 60 percent of the total number of voters in the school district 
who cast ballots in the last general election. 
 
Proceeds from bond sales are limited by bond covenants and must be used for the purpose(s) for 
which the bonds are issued.  They cannot be converted to a non-capital or operating purpose.  
The life of the improvement resulting from the bonds must meet or exceed the term of the bonds 
themselves. 
 
Capital Levies:  Capital Levies differ from bonds in that they do not result in the issuance of a 
financial instrument and, therefore, do not affect the “bonded indebtedness” of a school district.  
This method of financing is a straight increase in property tax rates to produce a voter-approved 
dollar amount.  The amount generated from the capital levy is then available to a district in the 
approved year.  The actual levy rate itself is determined by dividing the number of dollars 
approved by the assessed valuation of the total district at the time the taxes are set by the County 
Council.  While a typical period for capital levies is one or two years, they can be approved for 
up to a six-year period at one election.  The amounts to be collected are identified for each year 
separately and the tax rates set for each individual year.  Like bond issues, capital levies must be 
used for the specific capital purpose(s) that they were passed.  They cannot be converted to a 
non-capital or operating purpose. 
 
State Funding Assistance:  The State of Washington has a Common School Construction Fund.  
The State Board of Education is responsible for administration of the funds and the establishment 
of matching ratios. The Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI), on behalf of 
the State Board of Education, has determined that Steilacoom School District’s 2012 funding 
assistance ratio is 47.95% percent for those expenses that are defined as eligible for state funding 
assistance.  However, the District’s planned capacity project included in this six-year plan, a new 
elementary school, will not qualify for state funding.  
 

Packet page 135 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 32 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

The base to which the percent is applied is the cost of construction, as determined by the 
Construction Cost Allocation (formerly, the “Boeckh Index”).  The Construction Cost Allocation 
is an index of construction costs that is used by the state to hold, define, or limit their level of 
support.  This particular construction cost index rarely matches the actual cost of school 
construction in districts across Washington State.  Nevertheless, the Construction Cost 
Allocation for school construction costs for July 2012, $188.55 was per square foot. 
 
The formula for determining the amount of state matching support can be expressed as 
AxBxC=D, where 
 
A= eligible area (determined by OSPI’s student square footage allowances) 
B= The Construction Cost Allocation (in dollars per square foot) 
C= A school district’s applicable state funding assistance rate 
D= the amount of state fiscal assistance to which a district will be entitled.  Qualification for 
state matching funds involves an application process.  Districts may submit information for 
consideration by the State Board of Education, which meets once every two months during the 
year.  Once approved, the district qualifies for matching funds in a sequence, which recognizes 
the existing approvals of previous submittals.  Failure of a school district to proceed with a 
project in a timely manner can result in loss of a district’s “place in line”. 
 
New construction projects are eligible for a state reimbursement at 100% of the Construction 
Cost Allocation for matchable construction costs.  At this time, the Washington State Legislature 
have approved that Modernization of new-in-lieu-of replacement projects are eligible for state 
reimbursement at 100% of the Construction Cost Allocation. 
 
Funds for the state match come from the Common School Construction Fund using revenues 
accruing predominately from the sale of renewable resources, primarily timber, from state school 
lands being set aside by the Enabling Act of 1889.  If these sources are insufficient to meet 
current needs, the legislature can appropriate additional funds or the State Board of Education 
can establish a moratorium on certain projects (Chapter 392, Sections 341-344 of the 
Washington Administrative Code). 
 
Market demand for timber and wood products has been declining over the past decade, resulting 
in a substantial decrease in state matching revenues.  Efforts in the State Legislature to 
supplement timber-generated revenues with general fund monies have been only partially 
successful.  As noted in WAC 392-343-057, in the event that state matching monies are not 
available to fund a specific school project, then school districts may proceed at their own 
financial risk.  At such time state monies do become available, reimbursement will be made to 
the district for the state’s share of said project. 
 
Impact Fees:  According to RCW 82.02.050, the definition of an impact fee is “… a payment of 
money imposed upon development as a condition of development approval to pay for public 
facilities needed to serve new growth and development, and that is reasonably related to the new 
development that creates additional demand and need for public facilities, that is a proportionate 
share of the cost of the public facilities, and that is used for facilities that reasonably benefit the 
new development.  “Impact fee” does not include a reasonable permit or application fee.” 
 
Impact Fees can be calculated on the basis of “un-housed student need” as determined by 
applying the district’s level of service to projected new residential development.  A 

Packet page 136 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 33 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

determination of insufficient existing permanent space allows a district to seek imposition of 
mitigation or impact fees.  The amounts to be charged are calculated based on the costs for 
providing the space for the projected number of students in each residential unit.   
 
The District determines the cost per unit by using a student generation rate.  The Pierce County 
School Impact Fee Ordinance, Table 4A-1 of Chapter 4A.30 of the Pierce County Code, 
identifies the school impact fee formula and defines the “Student Factor” as follows:   
 
"Student Factor" means the number derived by a School District to describe how 
many students of each grade span are expected to be generated by development activity. 
Student factors shall be based on District records of average actual student generated 
rates for new developments constructed over a period of not more than five years prior 
to the date of the fee calculation; provided that, if such information is not available in 
the District or if there are no developments in the District similar to that being proposed, 
the District may use data from districts with similar demographics, or, if no other data 
sources are reasonably available, county-wide averages.  For purposes of this year’s CFP, the 
District is using the Fife School District’s student generation rates. 
 
The student factors are as follows: 
 

Single Family Dwelling Units: 
Elementary – K through 5:   .179 
Middle School – 6 through 8:  .108 
High School – 9 through 12:   .061 
 
Total:     .348 
 
Multi-Family Dwelling Units:  
Elementary – K through 5:   .090 
Middle School – 6 through 8:  .029 
High School – 9 through 12:   .000 
 
Total:     .119 
 

In future updates to this plan, the District will update the student factor accordingly.   
 
For impact fees, the District’s Board of Directors must first adopt a Capital Facilities Plan with 
recommended fees and then, the towns, cities, and counties located within the District boundaries 
must then adopt a school impact fee ordinance and adopt or update the District’s recommended 
fee.   Within the Steilacoom Historical School District, those general government jurisdictions 
include the Town of Steilacoom, the City of DuPont and Pierce County. 
 
Furthermore, developers may contribute properties which will have value to a district.  In such 
cases, the developer is entitled to a credit for the actual cost of the provided property.  This credit 
can reduce or eliminate the mitigation or impact fee that would be chargeable under the 
mitigation/impact fee calculation. 
 
An impact fee ordinance was passed in Pierce County effective January 1, 2003.  The applicable 
school impact fees are updated each year.  In 2012, Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 

Packet page 137 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 34 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

received from the County $2,305 for each single-family unit $0 for each multi-family dwelling 
unit.  The Pierce County school impact fee ordinance artificially caps fees and updates the 
capped fee each year based upon an escalation factor.     
 
Enclosures 1 though 2 to this tab include the District’s 2013 impact fee calculations and data.   
 
 
5. THE DISTRICT FUNDING PLAN 
 
The District’s Funding Plan is designed to identify the specific funding resources, the amounts of 
funding needed and the unique relationships that exist between funding sources for each of the 
capital projects set forth in the District’s Construction Plan.  As noted above, the District does 
not expect to receive state matching funds for construction of the new elementary school.  The 
District anticipates that the Phase 1 of the new elementary school will cost approximately 
$11,700,000.  The District’s voters will need to approve a bond measure to fund construction of 
the new school.  Impact fee revenue will also be used to fund the planning and construction.  
 
 
6. NEW CONSTRUCTION FUNDING 
 
The District’s immediate need is for the construction of a new elementary school in DuPont to 
accommodate enrollment growth.  Additional near term planning includes finalizing options for 
converting old Pioneer Middle School into District administrative staff space, along with 
identifying requirements for a new transportation and maintenance facility to handle increased 
transportation and maintenance needs that have resulted from our increased enrollment. Our 
transportation and maintenance needs will continue to increase based upon our projected growth 
in enrollment.  Funding of these facilities will be subject to a future bond measure and impact fee 
collections.   
 
The following “estimated debt capacity” spreadsheet denotes the available bonding capacity of 
the Steilacoom Historical School District.  Three debt capacities have been evaluated.  The 
evaluations are for accessed value growth for 3%, 5%, and 8%.  See the next page for these 
valuations. 
 
  

Packet page 138 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 35 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 139 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 36 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

MISCELLANEOUS SOURCES 
 
Other minor sources of funding include grants, bequests, and proceeds from the sales of excess 
property.  They are usually a small part of the total financing package. 
 
 
 
ENCLOSURES 1 AND 2 BELOW 
 

   

Packet page 140 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 37 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

ENCLOSURE 1 (Impact Fee Planning Factors) to TAB VI District Finance Plan  
 
 
Student Factors-Single/Multi-Family    Temporary Facilities Costs  
Elementary   .179/.090    Elementary   
Middle School   .108/.029    Middle School    
High School       .061/.000    High School      
 
 
Student Capacity Per Facility     Permanent Square Footage 
Elementary         300-500    Elementary  157,955 
Middle School       500-600    Middle School  104,707 
High School     1,300     High School  135,891 
        Total   398,553 
 
 
Site Acreage Site      State Funding Assistance 
Elementary    15 acres    Rate:  47.95% (currently not eligible) 
Middle School  25 acres      
High School              40 acres    Construction Cost Allocation 
         $188.55 
 
 
Site Cost per Acre      Gen. Obligation Bond Interest Rate 
Elementary       Current Bond Buyer Index   3.67% 
Middle School          
High School          
         
 
New Facility Construction Cost     District Debt Service Tax Rate 
Elementary Phase 1 (175)  $11,700,000    Current $/1,000    $2.33 
       
         
SPI Square Footage per Student     Average Assessed Value 
Elementary (K-5)             90   Single Fam. Res.          $240,340 
Middle School (6-8)           117   Multi-Family Res.        $239,186 
High School (9-12)           130   P.C. Assessor-Treasurer 
Special Education             144    

                                     

Packet page 141 of 151



 
SHSD Capital Facility Plan  Page 38 of 38 
Filename: 2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan 

ENCLOSURE 2 (Impact Fee Single/Multi-Family Dwelling Unit) to TAB VI District Finance 
Plan  

 

                                     

Packet page 142 of 151



Packet page 143 of 151



Packet page 144 of 151



Packet page 145 of 151



Packet page 146 of 151



Packet page 147 of 151



Packet page 148 of 151



Packet page 149 of 151



Memo 
TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Bill Fritz, Superintendent 

RE:  Building Staffing Levels and Support 

DATE:  February 13, 2013 

As you are aware, providing effective and efficient support is a must for our 
school district.  We are pleased to be able to enhance support for school and 
district needs.  Through responsible and efficient fiscal management, we have the 
resources to make this needed staffing a reality. 

Over recent months, through feedback from principals, Associations, and 
employees and by reviewing our budget and fund-balance status, we have been 
considering ways to enhance building-based support. 

The recent WASA management review also indicated a need for the central office 
to provide more effective and efficient school support.  When compared with 
similar size districts, the support services we are currently providing are not 
commensurate with the number of students and schools we serve.  By 
establishing this support, we will be more effective in meeting student and 
employee needs.  We are working on a central staffing model that will be more 
effective in providing professional development, teaching and learning support, 
and fiscal support.  This staffing level is intended to be efficient, while coming 
closer to reflecting the norm for a district our size and complexity. 

District-wide services exist to support schools.  Of course, direct service to 
students within schools comes first.  Starting within the next month, we plan to 
implement the following: 

Packet page 150 of 151



• Staffing each elementary school with two full time (8-hour) secretarial 
positions (currently, the second position is part time and this would 
increase to full time), 

• Providing an additional 4-hours of secretarial time at Pioneer Middle School 
and an additional 6-hours of secretarial time at Steilacoom High School(to 
be assigned as needed by the principal), 

• Providing an outside-of-the-school-day academic support program (focused 
on mathematics and literacy) at each school, including transportation (2 
days/week), 

• Providing counselor staffing at secondary schools at a ratio of 1:350 
(including running start students).  This staffing would result in an increase 
of high school staffing levels by .4 FTE for the remainder of the school year, 
and will be tied to enrollment for the future, 

• Staffing a behavioral support specialist position to provide direct specially 
designed instruction and support for special education personnel. 
 

We will assign assistant principals at Chloe Clark (1.0 FTE) and Saltar’s 
Point/Anderson Island (1.0 FTE combined) providing improved behavioral and 
instructional support (for fall of 2013), replacing the dean of students model.  
Chloe Clark’s enrollment is currently  525 student FTE and Saltar’s Point’s 
enrollment is currently 507 FTE.  Both schools are projected to grow next year. 

Additionally, we have recently added .56 FTE of ELL staffing within school 
buildings.  

Once these building-based needs are met, our plan is to establish a central office 
structure more fully responsive to building needs providing the needed level of 
customer service for our employees and the public.  A specific and efficient model 
will be recommended later this spring. 

 

 

Packet page 151 of 151


	Cover Page (p.1)
	Agenda (p.2)
	HC Presentation 2.pdf (p.5)
	1.23.13 Minutes.pdf (p.14)
	Approval of February 2103 Account Payable.pdf (p.18)
	Approval of Estimated February 2013 Payroll.pdf (p.57)
	Approval of Certificated Personnel Report.pdf (p.58)
	Approval of Classified Personnel Report.pdf (p.60)
	Approval of Coaching Personnel Report.pdf (p.62)
	Approval of SHS DECA Trip.pdf (p.65)
	Policy 5001.pdf (p.66)
	Policy 5050.pdf (p.69)
	SPT Elementary Project.pdf (p.73)
	Transportation Facility Project.pdf (p.77)
	Tranportation Facility Drawings (p.80)
	2012-2018 Cap Fac Plan - Env Checklist.pdf (p.81)
	2012-2018 SHSD Cap Fac Plan-02 08 13 Board Packet.pdf (p.105)
	Authority to Enter into Architect Contract.pdf (p.143)
	Memo re school staffing 2013 spring.pdf (p.150)

